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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K (the “Form 10-K”), references to the “Company,” “we,” “us,” “our” and “our company” refer to Lazard Growth Acquisition Corp. I.

We are a blank check company, incorporated as a Cayman Islands exempted company for the purpose of effecting a merger, share exchange, asset acquisition, share purchase, reorganization or similar business combination
with one or more businesses (an “initial business combination”). Lazard Ltd, an affiliate of our sponsor, LGACo 1 LLC (the “sponsor”), intends to use resources across its international financial advisory and asset management
businesses to source and evaluate attractive, high growth private companies. Although we are not limited to a particular industry or geographic region in our identification and acquisition of a target company, we believe the growth-
oriented subsectors of the healthcare, technology, energy transition, financial and consumer sectors present particularly attractive investment opportunities.

On December 17, 2020, the sponsor paid an aggregate purchase price of $25,000, or approximately $0.0017 per share, to subscribe for an aggregate of 14,375,000 Class B ordinary shares, par value $0.0001 per share (the
“founder shares”). Up to 1,875,000 founder shares were subject to forfeiture by the sponsor, depending on the extent to which the underwriter’s over-allotment option was exercised. As a result of the underwriter’s exercise of the over-
allotment option in full, 1,875,000 of the founder shares are no longer subject to forfeiture.

On February 12, 2021, we consummated our initial public offering (the “IPO”) of 57,500,000 of our units (the “units”), including 7,500,000 units sold upon exercise in full of the underwriter’s over-allotment option. Each
unit consists of one Class A ordinary share of the Company, $0.0001 par value per share (the “Class A ordinary shares”), and one-fifth of one redeemable warrant (the “public warrants”), with each whole public warrant entitling the
holder thereof to purchase one Class A ordinary share at an exercise price of $11.50 per share, subject to adjustment. The units were sold at an offering price of $10.00 per unit, generating gross proceeds of $575,000,000.

Simultaneously with the consummation of the IPO and the issuance and sale of the units, the Company consummated the sale to the sponsor of 9,000,000 private placement warrants (the “private placement warrants”), with
each private placement warrant exercisable to purchase one Class A ordinary share at $11.50 per share subject to adjustment, at a price of $1.50 per private placement warrant, generating total proceeds of $13,500,000. The private
placement warrants are identical to the public warrants, except that, so long as they are held by the sponsor or its permitted transferees, (i) they will not be redeemable by us, (ii) they (including the Class A ordinary shares issuable upon
exercise of these private placement warrants) may not, subject to certain limited exceptions, be transferred, assigned or sold by our sponsor until 30 days after the completion of our initial business combination, (iii) they may be
exercised by the holders on a cashless basis and (iv) they will be entitled to registration rights.

A total of $575,000,000, comprised of $563,500,000 of the proceeds from the IPO and $11,500,000 of the proceeds of the sale of the private placement warrants, was placed in a U.S.-based trust account at J.P. Morgan Chase
Bank, N.A., maintained by Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, acting as trustee (the “trust account”).

Transaction costs amounted to $32,432,846, consisting of $11,500,000 of underwriting fees (a net underwriting fee of $8,500,000 after giving effect to the underwriter’s reimbursement of the Company for $3,000,000 of
financial advisory fees payable by the Company to Lazard Frères & Co. LLC), $20,125,000 of deferred underwriting fees (as may be reduced as a result of the underwriter’s reimbursement to the Company for certain financial
advisory fees payable by the Company to Lazard Frères & Co. LLC) and $807,846 of other offering costs. In addition, cash of $1,812,418 was held outside of the trust account and is available for working capital purposes and payment
of IPO expenses.

For further details regarding our business, see the section titled “Proposed Business” contained in our prospectus dated February 9, 2021, incorporated by reference herein.

We maintain a corporate website at https://lazardltd.gcs-web.com/lgacu.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

For the risks relating to our operations, see the section titled “Risk Factors” contained in our prospectus dated February 9, 2021, incorporated by reference herein.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K may constitute “forward-looking statements” for purposes of the federal securities laws. Our forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to,
statements regarding our or our directors’ or officers’ expectations, hopes, beliefs, intentions or strategies regarding the future. In addition, any statements that refer to projections, forecasts or other characterizations of future events or
circumstances, including any underlying assumptions, are forward-looking statements. The words “anticipate,” “believe,” “continue,” “could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intends,” “may,” “might,” “plan,” “possible,” “potential,” “predict,”
“project,” “shall,” “should,” “will,” “would” and similar expressions may identify forward-looking statements, but the absence of these words does not mean that a statement is not forward-looking. Forward-looking statements herein
may include, for example, statements about:

 • our ability to select an appropriate target business or businesses;

 • our ability to complete our initial business combination;

 • our expectations around the performance of a prospective target business or businesses;

 • our success in retaining or recruiting, or changes required in, our officers, key employees or directors following our initial business combination;

 • our officers and directors allocating their time to other businesses and potentially having conflicts of interest with our business or in approving our initial business combination;

 • our potential ability to obtain additional financing to complete our initial business combination;

 • our pool of prospective target businesses;

 • our ability to consummate an initial business combination due to the uncertainty resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic;

 • the ability of our officers and directors to generate a number of potential business combination opportunities;

 • the use of proceeds not held in the trust account or available to us from interest income on the trust account balance;

 • the trust account not being subject to claims of third parties; or

 • our financial performance.

The forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are based on our current expectations and beliefs concerning future developments and their potential effects on us. There can be no assurance
that future developments affecting us will be those that we have anticipated. These forward-looking statements involve a number of risks, uncertainties (some of which are beyond our control) or other assumptions that may cause actual
results or performance to be materially different from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, those factors described under the heading “Risk
Factors” contained in our prospectus dated February 9, 2021, incorporated by reference herein. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should any of our assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary in
material respects from those projected in these forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as
may be required under applicable securities laws.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We currently maintain our principal executive offices at 30 Rockefeller Plaza, New York, NY 10112. The cost for this space is included in the $20,000 per-month fee our sponsor charges us for office space, secretarial and
administrative support. We consider our current office space, combined with the other office space otherwise available to our executive officers, adequate for our current operations.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

None.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our units, Class A ordinary shares and public warrants are or will be listed on the Nasdaq Capital Markets (“Nasdaq”) under the symbols LGACU, LGAC and LGACW, respectively.

Holders

As of March 1, 2021, there was one holder of record of our units, six holders of record of our Class B ordinary shares and one holder of record of our private placement warrants.

Dividends

We have not paid any cash dividends on our ordinary shares to date and do not intend to pay cash dividends prior to the completion of our initial business combination. The payment of cash dividends in the future will be
dependent upon our revenues and earnings, if any, capital requirements and general financial condition subsequent to completion of our initial business combination. The payment of any cash dividends subsequent to our initial business
combination will be within the discretion of our board of directors at such time. Further, if we incur any indebtedness, our ability to declare dividends may be limited by restrictive covenants we may agree to in connection therewith.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities; Use of Proceeds from Registered Securities

On December 17, 2020, the sponsor paid an aggregate purchase price of $25,000, or approximately $0.0017 per share, to subscribe for an aggregate of 14,375,000 Class B ordinary shares, par value $0.0001. The sponsor is
an accredited investor for purposes of Rule 501 of Regulation D. Each of the equity holders in the sponsor is an accredited investor under Rule 501 of Regulation D.

Simultaneously with the consummation of the IPO and the issuance and sale of the units, the Company consummated the sale to the sponsor of 9,000,000 private placement warrants, each exercisable to purchase one Class A
ordinary share at $11.50 per share subject to adjustment, at a price of $1.50 per private placement warrant, generating total proceeds of $13,500,000. This issuance was made pursuant to the exemption from registration contained in
Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”). The private placement warrants are identical to the public warrants, except that, so long as they are held by the sponsor or its permitted transferees, (i)
they will not be redeemable by us, (ii) they (including the Class A ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of these private placement warrants) may not, subject to certain limited exceptions, be transferred, assigned or sold by our
sponsor until 30 days after the completion of our initial business combination, (iii) they may be exercised by the holders on a cashless basis and (iv) they will be entitled to registration rights.

No underwriting discounts or commissions were paid with respect to such sales.

On February 12, 2021, we consummated our IPO of 57,500,000 of our units, including 7,500,000 units sold upon exercise in full of the underwriter’s over-allotment option. Each unit consists of one Class A ordinary share of
the Company, $0.0001 par value per share, and one-fifth of one redeemable warrant, with each whole public warrant entitling the holder thereof to purchase one Class A ordinary share at an exercise price of $11.50 per share, subject to
adjustment. The units were sold at an offering price of $10.00 per unit, generating gross proceeds of $575,000,000. Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC acted as Book-Running Manager. The securities sold in the IPO were registered under the
Securities Act on a registration statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-252408), which was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on February 9, 2021.

A total of $575,000,000, comprised of $563,500,000 of the proceeds from the IPO and $11,500,000 of the proceeds of the sale of the private placement warrants, was placed in a U.S.-based trust account at J.P. Morgan
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Chase Bank, N.A., maintained by Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, acting as trustee (the “trust account”).

Transaction costs amounted to $32,432,846, consisting of $11,500,000 of underwriting fees (a net underwriting fee of $8,500,000 after giving effect to the underwriter’s reimbursement of the Company for $3,000,000 of
financial advisory fees payable by the Company to Lazard Frères & Co. LLC), $20,125,000 of deferred underwriting fees (as may be reduced as a result of the underwriter’s reimbursement to the Company for certain financial
advisory fees payable by the Company to Lazard Frères & Co. LLC) and $807,846 of other offering costs. In addition, cash of $1,812,418 was held outside of the trust account and is available for working capital purposes and payment
of IPO expenses.

We intend to use substantially all of the funds held in the trust account, including any amounts representing interest earned on the trust account (less taxes payable and deferred underwriting commissions), to complete our
initial business combination. We may withdraw interest income (if any) to pay taxes, if any. Our annual income tax obligations will depend on the amount of interest and other income earned on the amounts held in the trust account. We
expect the interest income earned on the amount in the trust account (if any) will be sufficient to pay our income taxes. Any remaining proceeds held in the trust account will be used as working capital to finance the operations of the
target business or businesses, make other acquisitions and pursue our growth strategies.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Not applicable.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of the Company’s financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our audited financial statements and the notes related thereto which are included in
“Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Certain information contained in the discussion and analysis set forth below includes forward-looking statements. Our actual results may
differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of many factors, including those set forth under “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements,” “Item 1A. Risk Factors” and elsewhere in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Overview

We are a blank check company, incorporated as a Cayman Islands exempted company for the purpose of effecting a merger, share exchange, asset acquisition, share purchase, reorganization or similar business combination
with one or more businesses. Lazard Ltd, an affiliate of our sponsor, intends to use resources across its international financial advisory and asset management businesses to source and evaluate attractive, high growth private companies.
Although we are not limited to a particular industry or geographic region in our identification and acquisition of a target company, we believe the growth-oriented subsectors of the healthcare, technology, energy transition, financial and
consumer sectors present particularly attractive investment opportunities. As of December 31, 2020, we had not selected any potential business combination target and we had not, nor had anyone on our behalf, initiated any substantive
discussions, directly or indirectly, with any potential business combination target. During the fiscal period ended December 31, 2020, our efforts were limited to organizational activities.

Results of Operations

Our only activities from December 10, 2020 (inception) through December 31, 2020 were organizational activities and those necessary to consummate the IPO. We do not expect to generate any operating revenues until after
the completion of our initial business combination. We expect to generate non-operating income in the form of interest income on cash and cash equivalents. We expect to incur increased expenses as a result of being a public company
(for legal, financial reporting, accounting and auditing compliance), as well as for due diligence expenses.

For the period from December 10, 2020 (inception) through December 31, 2020, we had a net loss of $7,000, which consists of operating and formation costs.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

On December 17, 2020, the sponsor made available to the Company, under an unsecured revolving promissory note (the “IPO Promissory Note”), up to $300,000 to be used for costs and expenses reasonably related to the
Company’s formation and IPO. Immediately prior to the IPO, the borrowings outstanding under the IPO Promissory Note were $187,583. The IPO Promissory Note was non-interest bearing and was repaid in full and cancelled.

As of December 31, 2020, we had cash of $25,000. Until the consummation of the IPO, our liquidity needs were satisfied through the receipt of $25,000 from our sale of the founder shares and advances from our sponsor.
Prior to the completion of our initial business combination, we have available to us $1,300,000 from loans committed by our sponsor for working capital as of March, 26, 2021.

On February 12, 2021, we consummated our IPO of 57,500,000 of our units, including 7,500,000 units sold upon exercise in full of the underwriter’s over-allotment option. Each unit consists of one Class A ordinary share of
the Company, $0.0001 par value per share, and one-fifth of one public warrant, with each whole public warrant entitling the holder thereof to purchase one Class A ordinary share at an exercise price of $11.50 per share, subject to
adjustment. The units were sold at an offering price of $10.00 per unit, generating gross proceeds of $575,000,000. Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC acted as Book-Running Manager. The securities sold in the IPO were registered under the
Securities Act on a registration statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-252408), which was declared effective by the SEC on February 9, 2021.
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Simultaneously with the consummation of the IPO and the issuance and sale of the units, the Company consummated the sale to the sponsor of 9,000,000 private placement warrants, with each private placement warrant
exercisable to purchase one Class A ordinary share at $11.50 per share subject to adjustment, at a price of $1.50 per private placement warrant, generating total proceeds of $13,500,000. The private placement warrants are identical to
the public warrants, except that, so long as they are held by the sponsor or its permitted transferees, (i) they will not be redeemable by us, (ii) they (including the Class A ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of these private placement
warrants) may not, subject to certain limited exceptions, be transferred, assigned or sold by our sponsor until 30 days after the completion of our initial business combination, (iii) they may be exercised by the holders on a cashless basis
and (iv) they will be entitled to registration rights.

A total of $575,000,000, comprised of $563,500,000 of the proceeds from the IPO and $11,500,000 of the proceeds of the sale of the private placement warrants, was placed in the trust account. Transaction costs amounted
to $32,432,846, consisting of $11,500,000 of underwriting fees (a net underwriting fee of $8,500,000 after giving effect to the underwriter’s reimbursement of the Company for $3,000,000 of financial advisory fees payable by the
Company to Lazard Frères & Co. LLC), $20,125,000 of deferred underwriting fees (as may be reduced as a result of the underwriter’s reimbursement to the Company for certain financial advisory fees payable by the Company to
Lazard Frères & Co. LLC) and $807,846 of other offering costs.

We intend to use substantially all of the funds held in the trust account, including any amounts representing interest earned on the trust account (less taxes payable and deferred underwriting commissions), to complete our
initial business combination. We may withdraw interest income (if any) to pay taxes, if any. Our annual income tax obligations will depend on the amount of interest and other income earned on the amounts held in the trust account. We
expect the interest income earned on the amount in the trust account (if any) will be sufficient to pay our income taxes. Any remaining proceeds held in the trust account will be used as working capital to finance the operations of the
target business or businesses, make other acquisitions and pursue our growth strategies.

In order to fund working capital deficiencies or finance transaction costs in connection with an intended initial business combination, the sponsor has, as of March 26, 2021, committed $1,300,000 to be provided to us to fund
our expenses relating to investigating and selecting a target business and other working capital requirements prior to our initial business combination. In addition, the sponsor or an affiliate of the sponsor may, but is not obligated to,
loan us additional funds as may be required. If we complete our initial business combination, we may repay such loaned amounts out of the proceeds of the trust account released to us. In the event that our initial business combination
does not close, we may use a portion of the working capital held outside the trust account to repay such loaned amounts but no proceeds from our trust account would be used for such repayment. Up to $2,000,000 of such loans made
available from the sponsor or its affiliates may be convertible into warrants of the post-business combination entity at a price of $1.50 per warrant at the option of the lender. The warrants would be identical to the private placement
warrants. Except for the foregoing, the terms of such additional loans have not been determined and no written agreements exist with respect to such loans. Prior to the completion of our initial business combination, we do not expect to
seek loans from parties other than our sponsor or its affiliates as we do not believe third parties will be willing to loan such funds and provide a waiver against any and all rights to seek access to funds in our trust account.

We may need to obtain additional financing to complete our initial business combination, either because the transaction requires more cash than is available from the proceeds held in the trust account, or because we become
obligated to redeem a significant number of our public shares upon completion of the business combination, in which case we may issue additional securities or incur debt in connection with such business combination. If we have not
consummated our initial business combination within the required time period because we do not have sufficient funds available to us, we would be forced to cease operations and liquidate the trust account.

Off-balance sheet financing arrangements

As of December 31, 2020, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of Regulation S-K, and did not have any commitments or contractual obligations.

8



 

Contractual obligations

We do not have any long-term debt, capital lease obligations, operating lease obligations or long-term liabilities other than an agreement to pay the sponsor a monthly fee of $20,000 for office space, secretarial and
administrative services. We began incurring these fees on February 10, 2021 and expect to continue to incur these fees monthly until the earlier of the completion of our initial business combination and our liquidation.

There will be no finder’s fees, reimbursements or cash payments made by us to our sponsor, our directors and officers or their respective affiliates for services rendered to us prior to or in connection with the completion of
our initial business combination, other than the following payments, none of which will be made from the proceeds of the IPO and the sale of the private placement warrants, in each case held in the trust account, prior to the completion
of our initial business combination:

 • payments of $20,000 per month to an affiliate of our sponsor for office space, secretarial and administrative services, as described above;

 • reimbursement for any out-of-pocket expenses related to identifying, investigating, negotiating and completing an initial business combination;

 • payment to Lazard, including to Lazard Frères & Co. LLC, of fees for any financial advisory or other similar investment banking services provided to our company, and reimbursement of Lazard for any out-of-
pocket expenses incurred by Lazard in connection with the performance of such services; and

 • repayment of loans which may be made by our sponsor or an affiliate of our sponsor, including the $1,300,000 loan commitment made by our sponsor for working capital pursuant to an amended and restated
working capital promissory note dated as of March 26, 2021 to finance transaction costs in connection with an intended initial business combination. Up to $2,000,000 of such loans may be convertible into
warrants of the post-business combination entity at a price of $1.50 per warrant at the option of the lender. The warrants would be identical to the private placement warrants. Except for the foregoing, the terms of
such additional loans, if any, have not been determined and no written agreements exist with respect to such loans.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of expenses during the reported period. Estimates, by their nature, are based on judgment
and available information. Therefore, actual results could differ from those estimates and could have a material impact on the financial statements. We have identified not identified any critical accounting policies.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Management does not believe that any recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting pronouncements, if currently adopted, would have a material effect on our financial statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

As of December 31, 2020, we were not subject to any market or interest rate risk. The net proceeds of our IPO and the sale of the private placement warrants, including amounts deposited in the trust account, have been
invested in U.S. government treasury obligations with a maturity of 185 days or less or in money market funds meeting certain conditions under Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act which invest only in direct U.S.
government treasury obligations. Due to the short-term nature of these investments, we believe there will be no associated material exposure to interest rate risk. However, if the interest rates of U.S. Treasury obligations become
negative, we may have less interest income available to us for payment of taxes, and a decline in the value of the assets held in the trust account could reduce the principal below the amount initially deposited in the trust account.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

This information appears following Item 15 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROL AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls are procedures that are designed with the objective of ensuring that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the Exchange Act, such as this Annual Report on Form 10-K, is recorded,
processed, summarized, and reported within the time period specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls are also designed with the objective of ensuring that such information is accumulated and communicated to our
management, including the principal executive officer and principal financial and accounting officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Our management evaluated, with the participation of our
principal executive officer and principal financial and accounting officer (our “Certifying Officers”), the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2020, pursuant to Rule 13a-15(b) under the Exchange
Act. Based upon that evaluation, our Certifying Officers concluded that, as of December 31, 2020, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

We do not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures will prevent all errors and all instances of fraud. Disclosure controls and procedures, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable,
not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the disclosure controls and procedures are met. Further, the design of disclosure controls and procedures must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits must be
considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all disclosure controls and procedures, no evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures can provide absolute assurance that we have detected all our control
deficiencies and instances of fraud, if any. The design of disclosure controls and procedures also is based partly on certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in
achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions.

Management’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include a report of management’s assessment regarding internal control over financial reporting or an attestation report of our independent registered public accounting firm due to
a transition period established by rules of the SEC for newly public companies.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act) during the most recent fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Directors and Executive Officers

Our current directors and executive officers are as follows:
 

Name  Age   Position
Alexander Stern   54   Executive Chairman and Director
Eyal Ofir   40   Chief Executive Officer and Director
Mary Ann Deignan   58   Chief Financial Officer and Director
Adam Berlew   54   Director
Pierre-Yves Cros   61   Director
Philip Hadley   58   Director
Noreen Roth Henig   55   Director
Selina Tobaccowala   44   Director
 

Alexander Stern serves as our Executive Chairman and a Director. Mr. Stern has served as President of Lazard Ltd and its subsidiaries (“Lazard” and, together with such subsidiaries, “Lazard Group”) since June 2019 and
as a Managing Director of Lazard since 2002. Mr. Stern has previously served in various other leadership capacities at Lazard, including Chief Executive Officer of Lazard’s financial advisory business, Chief Operating Officer of
Lazard and Global Head of Strategy of Lazard. Mr. Stern also serves as the Executive Chairman and a Director of Lazard Healthcare Acquisition Corp. I (“LHCA I”) and of Lazard Fintech Acquisition Corp. I (“LFTA I”), special
purpose acquisition companies sponsored by indirect subsidiaries of Lazard Ltd (and therefore affiliates of our sponsor). Mr. Stern is recognized as a proven financial advisor in the technology sector with a track record of leading
complex transformational growth and value creation initiatives for clients. Prior to joining Lazard, Mr. Stern held various positions with Patricof & Co. Ventures and IBM. Mr. Stern is Chairman of the LUNGevity Foundation and a
member of the Board of Advisors for the School of Engineering and Applied Sciences of the University of Pennsylvania. Mr. Stern earned a B.S. from Duke University, an M.S.E. from the School of Engineering and Applied Science at
the University of Pennsylvania and an M.B.A. from the University of Pennsylvania, Wharton School. Mr. Stern was selected to serve on our board of directors due to his technology sector expertise and experience leading growth and
value creation initiatives, including in his current role at Lazard where he is responsible for developing and implementing the firm’s growth strategy.

Eyal Ofir serves as our Chief Executive Officer and a Director. Mr. Ofir is a Managing Director in Lazard’s Financial Institutions Group where he advises a broad range of global financial institutions, specializing in fintech.
Over the course of his career, Mr. Ofir has advised on a multitude of mergers, acquisitions, divestitures, leverage buyouts, IPOs and other capital markets transactions. Mr. Ofir also serves as the Executive Chairman and a Director of
LFTA I, a special purpose acquisition company sponsored by indirect subsidiaries of Lazard Ltd (and therefore affiliate of our sponsor). Prior to joining Lazard, Mr. Ofir worked in Ernst & Young’s Transaction Advisory Services group
and served as a Captain in the Israeli Navy. Mr. Ofir serves as Director and Treasurer of the National Psoriasis Foundation and as a member of Investment Committee for the endowment of Hadassah, the Women’s Zionist Organization
of America, Inc. Mr. Ofir received a B.A. from the Hebrew University of Jerusalem with a double major in Economics and Accounting and an M.B.A. from the University of Chicago Booth School of Business, where he was a Dennis
W. and Jane B. Carlton Fellow. Mr. Ofir was selected to serve on our board of directors due to his financial services sector expertise and substantial experience in mergers, acquisitions and capital markets transactions.

Mary Ann Deignan serves as our Chief Financial Officer and a Director. Ms. Deignan is a Managing Director and Co-Head of Capital Markets Advisory at Lazard, advising clients on shareholder activism, strategic investor
relations, capital raising and corporate governance. Ms. Deignan also serves as the Chief Financial Officer and a Director of LHCA I and of LFTA I, special purpose acquisition companies sponsored by indirect subsidiaries of Lazard
Ltd (and therefore affiliates of our sponsor). Ms. Deignan joined Lazard from Bank of America Merrill Lynch, where she was Co-Head of Global Equity Capital Markets, a role she assumed after her tenure as Head of Americas Equity
Capital Markets. She also worked for UBS as Head of Americas Equity Capital Markets.
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Ms. Deignan began her career at Bankers Trust in leveraged finance. Ms. Deignan provides expert guidance across regions and market sectors on a range of shareholder and corporate finance matters including activism preparedness and
defense, investor perspectives on M&A and strategic actions, IPO advisory and capital raising, trends in ESG and corporate governance. Ms. Deignan has extensive knowledge of the global equity markets and public market investors.
Ms. Deignan is on the Investment Committee of the Margaret A. Cargill Philanthropies and the Board of Advisors at the Hospital for Special Surgery in NYC. She has a B.A. from Mount Holyoke College and an M.B.A. from the Tuck
School at Dartmouth. Ms. Deignan was selected to serve on our board of directors due to her extensive knowledge of the global equity markets and public markets investors through her experience advising clients on shareholder
activism, strategic investor relations, capital raising and corporate governance.

Adam Berlew serves on our board of directors. Mr. Berlew is currently Director of Cloud AI & Industry Solutions at Google, Inc., where he leads strategic customer and partner engagement, operations and product
inclusion. Mr. Berlew previously served as the Director of Global Enterprise Demand Marketing for Google Cloud from 2017 to 2021. Prior to Google Cloud, he served as the Vice President of Global Marketing and Customer
Engagement with Broadcom Inc. from 2015 to 2017. Prior to joining Broadcom Inc., he served as Vice President of Global Demand Generation & Americas Marketing with Equinix Inc., a data center company. Mr. Berlew began his
career working at the Boston Consulting Group and has also been a tenured marketing leader with Dell Inc. Mr. Berlew holds a B.A. in Economics with Honors from Brown University and an M.B.A. from the University of
Pennsylvania, Wharton School. He has served as a member of the board of directors of Stifel Financial Corporation’s since 2019 and as one of the U.S. Olympic Luge Committee’s independent board members since 2014. Mr. Berlew
was selected to serve on our board of directors due to his extensive management and business background, particularly in the cloud, high-tech, telecom and financial and professional services sectors.

Pierre-Yves Cros serves on our board of directors. Mr. Cros is a Senior Advisor at The Blackstone Group Inc., one of the world’s leading investment firms. Prior to The Blackstone Group Inc., Mr. Cros was Chief Strategy
and Development Officer at Capgemini Group, a Paris-based company that provides consulting, digital transformation, technology and engineering services, where he held various senior leadership positions from 2003 to 2020. Mr.
Cros received an M.Sc. in Civil Engineering from Institut National des Sciences Appliquées de Lyon and an M.B.A. from HEC Paris. Mr. Cros was selected to serve on our board of directors due to his substantial experience in mergers
and acquisitions, operations and strategic business planning, as well as his Continental European perspective from his leadership positions in multi-national businesses.

Philip Hadley serves on our board of directors. Mr. Hadley is currently a Senior Advisor to Oak Hill Capital and a Special Advisor to Brighton Park Capital. Mr. Hadley also serves as a Director Nominee of LFTA I, a
special purpose acquisition company sponsored by indirect subsidiaries of Lazard Ltd (and therefore affiliate of our sponsor). Mr. Hadley was previously the Chairman and CEO at FactSet Research Systems Inc., a financial data and
software company, where he held various leadership positions from November 1986 to June 2020. Prior to joining FactSet Research Systems Inc., Mr. Hadley was employed by Cargill Corporation. Mr. Hadley received a B.B.A. in
Accounting from the University of Iowa and is a Chartered Financial Analyst. He has served as the Chairman of Clean Origin since 2018, the Chairman of RocketReach.co since 2020, a member of the board of directors of Calero
Software since 2020 and a member of the board of advisors of Kum & Go since 2005. Mr. Hadley previously served as Chairman of RS Energy Group from 2017 until its acquisition by Enverus in February 2020. Mr. Hadley was
selected to serve on our board of directors due to his significant experience in software and financial data and his track record as CEO of FactSet.

Noreen Roth Henig, M.D. serves on our board of directors. Dr. Henig is the Chief Medical Officer of Kezar Life Sciences, Inc., a clinical-stage biotechnology company committed to revolutionizing treatments for patients
with autoimmune diseases and cancer. Dr. Henig also serves as a Director Nominee of LHCA I, a special purpose acquisition company sponsored by indirect subsidiaries of Lazard Ltd (and therefore affiliate of our sponsor). Prior to
Kezar Life Sciences, Inc., Dr. Henig served as Chief Medical Officer of Breath Therapeutics Holdings BV, a biotechnology company developing a first-in-class inhaled drug-device therapy that was recently acquired by Zambon SpA.
Prior to joining Breath Therapeutics Holding BV, she was Chief Medical Officer at ProQR Therapeutics N.V., a private company that completed an initial public offering as a preclinical phase biotechnology company. Since 2019, Dr.
Henig has also served on the board of directors of Avidity Biosciences, which recently completed its initial public offering as a preclinical company in June 2020. Dr. Henig holds a B.A. in History of Art from Yale University and an
M.D. with distinction in Immunology from Albert Einstein College of Medicine of
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Yeshiva University. Dr. Henig was selected to serve on our board of directors due to her extensive management and business background, particularly in the area of healthcare and biotech.

Selina Tobaccowala serves on our board of directors. Ms. Tobaccowala is currently the Chief Digital Officer at Openfit, LLC, an all-in-one digital streaming platform for integrated fitness, nutrition and wellness. Ms.
Tobaccowala also serves as a Director Nominee of LHCA I, a special purpose acquisition company sponsored by indirect subsidiaries of Lazard Ltd (and therefore affiliate of our sponsor). Prior to joining Openfit, LLC, she was the co-
founder and CEO at Gixo, Inc., an innovative live workout fitness start-up, from 2016 until they were acquired by Openfit, LLC in 2019. Prior to Gixo Inc., Ms. Tobaccowala was the President and Chief Technology Officer at
SurveyMonkey Inc. from 2009 to 2016, leading the company to become the world’s dominant online survey platform. She received a B.S. in Computer Science with Honors from Stanford University. Ms. Tobaccowala has served on the
board of directors of Redfin since 2014 and as an advisory board member of HubSpot since 2015. Ms. Tobaccowala was selected to serve on our board of directors due to her considerable experience as an entrepreneur and software
product executive.

Director Independence

The Nasdaq listing standards require that a majority of our board of directors be independent, subject to certain phase-in provisions. An “independent director” is defined generally as a person other than an officer or
employee of the company or its subsidiaries or any other individual having a relationship which, in the opinion of the company’s board of directors, would interfere with the director’s exercise of independent judgment in carrying out
the responsibilities of a director. Our board of directors has determined that each of Adam Berlew, Pierre-Yves Cros, Philip Hadley, Noreen Roth Henig and Selina Tobaccowala are “independent directors” as defined in the Nasdaq
listing standards. Our independent directors will have regularly scheduled meetings at which only independent directors are present.

Audit Committee

We have established an audit committee of the board of directors. Under the Nasdaq listing standards and applicable SEC rules, we are required to have at least three members of the audit committee, all of whom must be
independent, subject to certain phase-in provisions. Mr. Cros, Mr. Hadley and Ms. Tobaccowala serve as members of our audit committee, and Mr. Hadley serves as the chairman of the audit committee. Our board of directors has
determined that each of Mr. Cros, Mr. Hadley and Ms. Tobaccowala are independent under the Nasdaq listing standards and applicable SEC rules. Each member of the audit committee is financially literate and our board of directors has
determined that Mr. Hadley qualifies as an “audit committee financial expert” as defined in applicable SEC rules.

We have adopted an audit committee charter, which is available on our website and details the principal functions of the audit committee, including:

 • meeting with our independent registered public accounting firm regarding, among other issues, audits, and adequacy of our accounting and control systems;

 • monitoring the independence of the independent registered public accounting firm;

 • verifying the rotation of the lead (or coordinating) audit partner having primary responsibility for the audit and the audit partner responsible for reviewing the audit as required by law;

 • inquiring and discussing with management our compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

 • pre-approving all audit services and permitted non-audit services to be performed by our independent registered public accounting firm, including the fees and terms of the services to be performed;

 • appointing or replacing the independent registered public accounting firm;

 • determining the compensation and oversight of the work of the independent registered public accounting firm (including resolution of disagreements between management and the independent auditor regarding
financial reporting) for the purpose of preparing or issuing an audit report or related work;
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 • establishing procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by us regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or reports which raise material issues regarding our financial
statements or accounting policies;

 • monitoring compliance on a quarterly basis with the terms of the IPO and, if any noncompliance is identified, immediately taking all action necessary to rectify such noncompliance or otherwise causing
compliance with the terms of the IPO; and

 • reviewing and approving all payments made to our sponsor, officers or directors and their respective affiliates. Any payments made to members of our audit committee will be reviewed and approved by our board
of directors, with the interested director or directors abstaining from such review and approval.

The charter also provides that the compensation committee may, in its sole discretion, retain or obtain the advice of a compensation consultant, legal counsel or other adviser and will be directly responsible for the
appointment, compensation and oversight of the work of any such adviser.

However, before engaging or receiving advice from a compensation consultant, external legal counsel or any other adviser, the compensation committee will consider the independence of each such adviser, including the
factors required by the Nasdaq and the SEC.

Director Nominations

We do not have a standing nominating committee though we intend to form a corporate governance and nominating committee as and when required to do so by law or Nasdaq rules. In accordance with Rule 5605(e)(1)(A)
of the Nasdaq rules, a majority of the independent directors may recommend a director nominee for selection by our board of directors. Our board of directors believes that the independent directors can satisfactorily carry out the
responsibility of properly selecting or approving director nominees without the formation of a standing nominating committee. The directors who will participate in the consideration and recommendation of director nominees are
Mr. Berlew, Dr. Henig and Ms. Tobaccowala. In accordance with Rule 5605 of the Nasdaq rules, each of Mr. Berlew, Dr. Henig and Ms. Tobaccowala are independent. As there is no standing nominating committee, we do not have a
nominating committee charter in place.

Our board of directors will also consider director candidates recommended for nomination by our shareholders during such times as they are seeking proposed nominees to stand for election at the next annual meeting of
shareholders (or, if applicable, an extraordinary general meeting of shareholders). Our shareholders that wish to nominate a director for election to our board of directors should follow the procedures set forth in our amended and
restated memorandum and articles of association. However, prior to our initial business combination, holders of our public shares will not have the right to recommend director candidates for nomination to our board of directors.

We have not formally established any specific, minimum qualifications that must be met or skills that are necessary for directors to possess. In general, in identifying and evaluating nominees for director, our board of
directors considers a number of qualifications relating to management and leadership experience, background and integrity and professionalism in evaluating a person’s candidacy for membership on the board of directors. Our board of
directors may require certain skills or attributes, such as financial or accounting experience, to meet specific board needs that arise from time to time and will also consider the overall experience and makeup of its members to obtain a
broad and diverse mix of board members.

Compensation Committee

We have established a compensation committee of our board of directors. The members of our compensation committee are Mr. Berlew and Dr. Henig, and Dr. Henig serves as chairwoman of the compensation committee.

Under the Nasdaq listing standards, we are required to have a compensation committee composed entirely of independent directors, subject to certain phase-in provisions. Our board of directors has determined that each of
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Mr. Berlew and Dr. Henig are independent. We have adopted a compensation committee charter, which is available on our website and details the principal functions of the compensation committee, including:

 • reviewing and approving on an annual basis the corporate goals and objectives relevant to our chief executive officer’s compensation, evaluating our chief executive officer’s performance in light of such goals
and objectives and determining and approving the remuneration (if any) of our chief executive officer based on such evaluation;

 • reviewing and approving the compensation of all of our other Section 16 officers;

 • reviewing our executive compensation policies and plans;

 • implementing and administering our incentive compensation equity-based remuneration plans;

 • assisting management in complying with our proxy statement and annual report disclosure requirements;

 • approving all special perquisites, special cash payments and other special compensation and benefit arrangements for our officers and employees;

 • producing a report on executive compensation to be included in our annual proxy statement; and

 • reviewing, evaluating and recommending changes, if appropriate, to the remuneration for directors.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Ethics applicable to our directors, officers and employees. A copy of the Code of Ethics will be provided without charge upon request from us. We intend to disclose any amendments to or
waivers of certain provisions of our Code of Ethics in a Current Report on Form 8-K.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our officers, directors, and persons who own more than ten percent of a registered class of our equity securities to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the SEC.
Officers, directors, and ten percent shareholders are required by regulation to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file. As we were not public in 2020, no person had any filing requirements pursuant to Section 16(a).

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

None of our executive officers or directors have received any cash compensation for services rendered to us. However, Mr. Stern, our Executive Chairman, Mr. Ofir, our Chief Executive Officer, and Ms. Deignan, our Chief
Financial Officer, are also currently President, Managing Director and Managing Director, respectively, of Lazard and receive compensation from Lazard. Until consummation of an initial business combination, we will pay an affiliate
of our sponsor an aggregate fee of $20,000 per month for providing us with office space, secretarial and administrative services. However, this arrangement is solely for our benefit and is not intended to provide any of our executive
officers or directors with compensation in lieu of a salary.

In addition, our sponsor transferred 25,000 founder shares to each of our independent directors. Further, Lazard has provided each of our executive officers with the opportunity to purchase membership interests in a series of
our sponsor (the “Employee Participation Interests”) pursuant to which our executive officers have economic interests in certain of the founder shares but do not have voting rights or dispositive power with respect thereto. Our
executive officers have an economic interest in respect of approximately 2% in the aggregate of our issued and outstanding founder shares attributable to their Employee Participation Interests. Each of our executive officers will also be
eligible to directly or indirectly purchase or receive additional economic or other interests in our securities from Lazard, including additional Employee Participation Interests, on a discretionary basis in the future.

Our audit committee will review on a quarterly basis all payments that were made by us to our sponsor, any director or officer or their respective affiliates. Other than quarterly audit committee review of such
reimbursements,
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we do not expect to have any additional controls in place governing our reimbursement payments to our directors and executive officers for their out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with our activities on our behalf in
connection with identifying and consummating an initial business combination.

After the completion of our initial business combination, directors and executive officers who remain with us may be paid consulting or management fees from the combined company. All of these fees will be described, to
the extent then known, in the proxy solicitation materials or tender offer materials furnished to our shareholders in connection with a proposed business combination. We have not established any limit on the amount of such fees that
may be paid by the combined company to our directors or executive officers. It is unlikely the amount of such compensation will be known at the time of the proposed business combination, because the directors of the post-transaction
business will be responsible for determining officer and director compensation. Any compensation to be paid to our executive officers will be determined, or recommended to the board of directors for determination, either by a
compensation committee constituted solely by independent directors or by a majority of the independent directors on our board of directors.

We do not intend to take any action to ensure that directors or executive officers maintain their positions with us after the consummation of our initial business combination, although it is possible that some or all of our
directors and executive officers may negotiate employment or consulting arrangements to remain with us after our initial business combination. The existence or terms of any such employment or consulting arrangements to retain their
positions with us may influence our management’s motivation in identifying or selecting a target business, but we do not believe that the ability of our management to remain with us after the consummation of our initial business
combination will be a determining factor in our decision to proceed with any potential business combination. We are not party to any agreements with our executive officers and directors that provide for benefits upon termination of
employment.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

The following table sets forth information regarding the beneficial ownership of our ordinary shares as of March 1, 2021 by:

 • each person known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of our issued and outstanding ordinary shares;

 • each of our executive officers and directors that beneficially owns ordinary shares; and

 • all of our executive officers and directors as a group.

Unless otherwise indicated, we believe that all persons named in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect to all of our ordinary shares beneficially owned by them. The following table does not reflect  

16



 

beneficial ownership of the private placement warrants or the warrants included in the units offered in the IPO as these warrants are not exercisable within 60 days of the date hereof.
 

  

Amount and
Nature of
Beneficial

Ownership   

Approximate
Percentage

of
Outstanding

Ordinary
Shares  

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner(1)         
LGACo 1 LLC (our sponsor)(2)(3)(4)   14,250,000   19.8%
Lazard Ltd(2)(4)   14,250,000   19.8%
Alexander Stern(3)(4)   —   — 
Eyal Ofir(3)(4)   —   — 
Mary Ann Deignan(3)(4)   —   — 
Adam Berlew(4)   25,000  * 
Pierre-Yves Cros(4)   25,000  * 
Philip Hadley(4)   25,000  * 
Noreen Roth Henig(4)   25,000  * 
Selina Tobaccowala(4)   25,000  * 
All directors and executive officers as
   a group (eight individuals)(3)(4)   125,000  * 
5% Shareholders         
Millennium Management LLC(5)   2,947,266   5.1%
Millennium Group Management LLC(5)   2,947,266   5.1%
Israel A. Englander(5)   2,947,266   5.1%
 

* Less than one percent.
(1) Unless otherwise noted, the business address of each of our shareholders is 30 Rockefeller Plaza, New York, New York 10112.
(2) Our sponsor is the record holder of such ordinary shares, and Lazard Ltd is the ultimate control person of the founder shares held by our sponsor. Our sponsor is organized as a Delaware series limited liability company.

Pursuant to the amended and restated operating agreement of our sponsor, Lazard Group is the sole manager of our sponsor and each series thereof and, accordingly, maintains the voting rights attributable to, and the
dispositive power in respect of, all founder shares underlying the Employee Participation Interests. Lazard Group is an indirect subsidiary of Lazard Ltd and is governed by a board of directors (its non-executive directors are
the same as the non-executive directors of Lazard Ltd) and managed by its executive officers. LGA HoldCo LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and the Series A Member of our sponsor (“HoldCo”), (i) holds
Employee Participation Interests in a series of our sponsor that entitles it to economic interests in respect of 9,950,000 founder shares and (ii) has full power to appoint, remove or replace the sole manager of our sponsor at
any time. HoldCo is a direct wholly owned subsidiary of Lazard Group and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Lazard Ltd. As such, Lazard Ltd, through its controlling ownership interests in Lazard Group and HoldCo,
has full discretion to manage and control the business and affairs of our sponsor and each series thereof and is the ultimate control person of the founder shares held of record by our sponsor. Lazard Ltd, a publicly traded
company incorporated under the laws of Bermuda with disparate ownership, is governed by a board of directors and is managed by its executive officers, including Mr. Stern who is our Executive Chairman and one of our
directors; accordingly, no natural persons control Lazard Ltd.

(3) Lazard has provided each of our executive officers with the opportunity to purchase Employee Participation Interests pursuant to which our executive officers have economic interests in certain of the founder shares but do
not have voting rights or dispositive power with respect thereto. Each of our executive officers is also eligible to directly or indirectly purchase or receive additional economic or other interests in our securities from Lazard,
including additional Employee Participation Interests, on a discretionary basis in the future. In addition, certain other employees of Lazard have been, and in the future may be, directly or indirectly provided the opportunity
to purchase Employee Participation Interests pursuant to which such persons will have economic interests in certain of the founder shares but will not have voting rights or dispositive power with respect thereto. Our sponsor
has provided the opportunity to purchase Employee Participation Interests to
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our executive officers and such other employees of Lazard representing economic interests in approximately 30% in the aggregate of our issued and outstanding founder shares, including approximately 2% in the aggregate
which has been purchased by our executive officers; however, our sponsor maintains the voting rights attributable to, and the dispositive power in respect of, all founder shares.

(4) Interests shown consist solely of founder shares, classified as Class B ordinary shares. Such shares will automatically convert into Class A ordinary shares on a one-for-one basis, subject to adjustment pursuant to certain anti-
dilution rights, at the time of our initial business combination or earlier at the option of the holders thereof.

(5) Based upon a Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 24, 2021. The address of each of Millennium Management LLC, Millennium Group Management LLC and Israel A. Englander is 399 Park Avenue, New York,
New York 10022.

The founder shares and private placement warrants and any Class A ordinary shares issued upon conversion or exercise thereof are each subject to transfer restrictions pursuant to lock-up provisions in the agreement entered
into by our sponsor and each of our directors and executive officers. Our sponsor and each of our directors and executive officers have agreed not to transfer, assign or sell any of their founder shares until the earliest of (a) one year after
the completion of our initial business combination and (b) subsequent to our initial business combination, (x) if the closing price of our Class A ordinary shares equals or exceeds $12.00 per share (as adjusted for share subdivisions,
share capitalizations, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days within any 30-trading day period commencing at least 150 days after our initial business combination or (y) the date on which we complete a
liquidation, merger, share exchange or other similar transaction that results in all of our public shareholders having the right to exchange their Class A ordinary shares for cash, securities or other property. The private placement warrants
and the respective Class A ordinary shares underlying such warrants are not transferable or salable until 30 days after the completion of our initial business combination. The foregoing restrictions are not applicable to transfers (a) to our
executive officers or directors, any affiliates or family members of any of our executive officers or directors, any members or partners of our sponsor or their affiliates, any affiliates of our sponsor, or any employees or directors of such
affiliates (including, for the avoidance of doubt, employees and directors of Lazard), or any funds or accounts advised by our sponsor or its affiliates; (b) in the case of an individual, by gift to a member of one of the individual’s
immediate family or to a trust, the beneficiary of which is a member of the individual’s immediate family, an affiliate of such person or to a charitable organization; (c) in the case of an individual, by virtue of laws of descent and
distribution upon death of the individual; (d) in the case of an individual, pursuant to a qualified domestic relations order; (e) by private sales or transfers made in connection with the consummation of a business combination at prices
no greater than the price at which the founder shares, private placement warrants or Class A ordinary shares, as applicable, were originally purchased; (f) by virtue of our sponsor’s organizational documents upon liquidation or
dissolution of our sponsor; (g) to the company for no value for cancellation in connection with the consummation of our initial business combination; (h) in the event of our liquidation prior to the completion of our initial business
combination; or (i) in the event of our completion of a liquidation, merger, share exchange or other similar transaction which results in all of our public shareholders having the right to exchange their Class A ordinary shares for cash,
securities or other property subsequent to our completion of our initial business combination; provided, however, that in the case of clauses (a) through (f) these permitted transferees must enter into a written agreement agreeing to be
bound by these transfer restrictions and the other restrictions contained in the letter agreement.

Equity Compensation Plans

As of December 31, 2020, we had no compensation plans (including individual compensation arrangements) under which equity securities of the registrant were authorized for issuance.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

In order to finance transaction costs in connection with an initial business combination, our sponsor has committed $1,300,000 in loans to be provided to us to fund our expenses relating to investigating and selecting a target
business and other working capital requirements after this offering and prior to our initial business combination. For a complete discussion regarding certain relationships and related transactions, see the section titled
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“Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions” contained in our prospectus incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

The firm of Marcum LLP acts as our independent registered public accounting firm. The following is a summary of fees paid to Marcum LLP for services rendered.

Audit Fees

During the fiscal period ended December 31, 2020, fees for our independent registered public accounting firm were $30,000 for the services they performed in connection with our IPO.

Audit-Related Fees

During the fiscal period ended December 31, 2020, our independent registered public accounting firm did not render assurance related services related to the performance of the audit or review of financial statements.

Tax Fees

During the fiscal period ended December 31, 2020, our independent registered public accounting firm did not render services to us for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning.

All Other Fees

During the fiscal period ended December 31, 2020, there were no fees billed for products and services provided by our independent registered public accounting firm other than those set forth above.

Audit Committee Approval

Because our audit committee was not formed until January 25, 2021, the audit committee did not pre-approve all of the foregoing services, although any services rendered prior to the formation of our audit committee were
approved by our board of directors. However, in accordance with Section 10A(i) of the Exchange Act, before we engage our independent registered public accounting firm to render audit or non-audit services on a going-forward basis,
the engagement will be approved by our audit committee.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, AND SCHEDULES

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:

(1) Financial Statements:
 
Description   
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  F-2
Financial Statements:   

Balance Sheet  F-3
Statement of Operations  F-4
Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity  F-5
Statement of Cash Flows  F-6
Notes to Financial Statements  F-7

 
(2) Financial Statement Schedules:

None.
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(b) The following Exhibits are filed as part of this report:
 

Exhibit No.  Description
   

    1.1  Underwriting Agreement, dated February 9, 2021, between the Company and Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC.*
    3.1  Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of Association.*
    4.1  Specimen Unit Certificate.**
    4.2  Specimen Class A Ordinary Share Certificate.**
    4.3  Specimen Warrant Certificate.**
    4.4  Warrant Agreement between Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company and the Company.*
    4.5  Description of Securities.
  10.1  Private Placement Warrants Purchase Agreement, dated February 9, 2021, between the Company and the Sponsor.*
  10.2  Investment Management Trust Agreement, dated February 9, 2021, between the Company and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company.*
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of
Lazard Growth Acquisition Corp. I

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Lazard Growth Acquisition Corp. I (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2020, the related statement of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the period from
December 10, 2020 (inception) through December 31, 2020, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”).  In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the period from December 10, 2020 (inception) through December 31, 2020, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's financial statements based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) ("PCAOB") and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of
the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audit we are required to obtain an understanding
of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audit included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audit also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Marcum LLP

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2020.

New York, NY
March 31, 2021.
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LAZARD GROWTH ACQUISITION CORP. I
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2020
 
ASSETS     

Current assets:     
Cash  $ 25,000 

Other assets:     
Deferred offering costs   629,750 

Total assets  $ 654,750 
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY     

Current Liabilities:     
Promissory note payable  $ 86,750 
Accrued offering and formation costs   550,000 

Total liabilities   636,750 
Commitments and contingencies     
Shareholder's Equity     

Preference shares, $0.0001 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized;
   none issued and outstanding   — 
Class A ordinary shares, $0.0001 par value; 500,000,000 shares authorized;
   none issued and outstanding   — 
Class B ordinary shares, $0.0001 par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized;
   14,375,000 shares issued and outstanding (1)   1,438 
Additional paid in capital   23,562 
Accumulated deficit   (7,000)

Total shareholder's equity   18,000 
Total liabilities and shareholder’s equity  $ 654,750

 

 

(1) Includes an aggregate of up to 1,875,000 shares of Class B common stock subject to forfeiture if the over-allotment option is not exercised in full or in part by the underwriter (see Note 5).
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LAZARD GROWTH ACQUISITION CORP. I
Statement of Operations

For the Period from December 10, 2020 (inception) through December 31, 2020
 
Formation costs  $ 7,000 

Net loss  $ (7,000)
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic and diluted (1)   12,500,000 
Basic and diluted net loss per ordinary share  $ (0.00)
 

(1) Excludes an aggregate of up to 1,875,000 shares of Class B common stock subject to forfeiture if the over-allotment option is not exercised in full or in part by the underwriter (see Note 5).
 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LAZARD GROWTH ACQUISITION CORP. I
Statement of Changes in Shareholder's Equity

For the Period from December 10, 2020 (inception) through December 31, 2020
 

  Class B Common Stock   

Additional
Paid in
Capital   

Accumulated
Deficit   

Total
Shareholder's

Equity  
  Shares   Amount              

Balance, December 10, 2020 (inception)   —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ — 
Issuance of Class B ordinary shares to
   Sponsor (1)   14,375,000   1,438   23,562   —   25,000 
Net loss   —   —   —   (7,000)   (7,000)

Balance, December 31, 2020   14,375,000  $ 1,438  $ 23,562  $ (7,000)  $ 18,000
 

 

(1) Includes an aggregate of up to 1,875,000 shares of Class B common stock subject to forfeiture if the over-allotment option is not exercised in full or in part by the underwriter (see Note 5).
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LAZARD GROWTH ACQUISITION CORP. I
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Period from December 10, 2020 (inception) through December 31, 2020
 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:     
Net loss  $ (7,000)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:     

Increase in Accrued offering and formation costs   7,000 
Net Cash used in operating activities   — 

Financing Activities:     
Proceeds from issuance of Class B ordinary shares   25,000 

Net Change in Cash   25,000 
Cash - Beginning of period   — 
Cash - End of period  $ 25,000 

Non-cash investing and financing activities:     
Deferred offering costs included in accrued offering and formation costs  $ 629,750

 

 
 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
 

F-6



 
 
Note 1 - Organization and Plan of Business Operations

Lazard Growth Acquisition Corp. I (the “Company”) is a blank check company, incorporated as a Cayman Islands exempted company on December 10, 2020. The Company was incorporated for the purpose of
effecting a merger, share exchange, asset acquisition, share purchase, reorganization or similar business combination with one or more businesses or entities (a “Business Combination”). The Company is not limited to a
particular industry or sector for purposes of consummating a Business Combination. The Company is an early stage and emerging growth company and, as such, the Company is subject to all of the risks associated with early
stage and emerging growth companies.

As of December 31, 2020, the Company had not commenced any operations. All activity for the period from December 10, 2020 (inception) through December 31, 2020 relates to the Company’s formation and the
initial public offering (“Initial Public Offering”), which is described below. The Company will not generate any operating revenues until after the completion of a Business Combination, at the earliest. The Company will generate
non-operating income in the form of interest income from the proceeds derived from the Initial Public Offering. The Company has selected December 31 as its fiscal year end.

The registration statement for the Initial Public Offering became effective on February 9, 2021. On February 12, 2021, the Company consummated the Initial Public Offering of 57,500,000 units (the “Units”), including
7,500,000 Units sold upon exercise in full of the underwriter’s over-allotment option, at $10.00 per Unit, which is discussed in Note 3, and the sale of 9,000,000 warrants, including 1,000,000 warrants upon the exercise of the
underwriter’s over-allotment option in full (the “Private Placement Warrants”) at a price of $1.50 per Private Placement Warrant in a private placement to LGACo 1 LLC (the “Sponsor”), that closed simultaneously with the
closing of the Initial Public Offering.

The Company’s management has broad discretion with respect to the specific application of the net proceeds of the Initial Public Offering and the sale of the Private Placement Warrants, although substantially all of
the net proceeds are intended to be applied generally toward consummating a Business Combination. The stock exchange listing rules require that the Business Combination must be with one or more operating businesses or
assets with a fair market value equal to at least 80% of the net assets held in the Trust Account (as defined below) (excluding the amount of deferred underwriting commissions and taxes payable on the income earned on the
Trust Account). The Company will only complete a Business Combination if the post-Business Combination company owns or acquires 50% or more of the issued and outstanding voting securities of the target or otherwise
acquires a controlling interest in the target business sufficient for it not to be required to register as an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “Investment Company Act”). There
is no assurance that the Company will be able to successfully effect a Business Combination. Upon the closing of the Initial Public Offering, management agreed that $10.00 per Unit sold in the Initial Public Offering, including
proceeds of the sale of the Private Placement Warrants, were placed in a trust account (“Trust Account”) and invested in U.S. government securities, within the meaning set forth in Section 2(a)(16) of the Investment Company
Act, with a maturity of 185 days or less, or in any open-ended investment company that holds itself out as a money market fund investing solely in U.S. Treasuries and meeting certain conditions under Rule 2a-7 of the
Investment Company Act, as determined by the Company, until the earliest of: (i) the completion of a Business Combination and (ii) the distribution of the funds in the Trust Account to the Company’s shareholders, as
described below.

The Company will provide the holders of the public shares (the “Public Shareholders”) with the opportunity to redeem all or a portion of their public shares upon the completion of the Business Combination, either (i)
in connection with a general meeting called to approve the Business Combination or (ii) by means of a tender offer. The decision as to whether the Company will seek shareholder approval of a Business Combination or conduct
a tender offer will be made by the Company, solely in its discretion, based on a variety of factors. The Public Shareholders will be entitled to redeem their Public Shares, equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust
Account, calculated as of two business days prior to the consummation of the Business Combination (initially anticipated to be $10.00 per Public Share), including interest (which interest shall be net of taxes payable), divided
by the number of then issued and outstanding public shares, subject to certain limitations. The per-share amount to be distributed to the Public Shareholders who properly redeem their shares will not be reduced by the
deferred underwriting commissions the Company will pay to the underwriter
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(as discussed in Note 6). There will be no redemption rights upon the completion of a Business Combination with respect to the Company’s warrants. The Class A ordinary shares will be recorded at redemption value and
classified as temporary equity upon the completion of the Initial Public Offering, in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 480 “Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity.”

The Company will proceed with a Business Combination only if the Company has net tangible assets of at least $5,000,001 and, if the Company seeks shareholder approval, it receives an ordinary resolution under
Cayman Islands law approving a Business Combination, which requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the shareholders who attend and vote at a general meeting of the Company. If a shareholder vote is not required and
the Company does not decide to hold a shareholder vote for business or other legal reasons, the Company will, pursuant to its Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of Association, conduct the redemptions
pursuant to the tender offer rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), and file tender offer documents containing substantially the same information as would be included in a proxy statement with the SEC prior
to completing a Business Combination. If the Company seeks shareholder approval in connection with a Business Combination, the Sponsor and each of our officers and directors have agreed to vote its Founder Shares (as
defined in Note 5) and any Public Shares purchased during or after the Initial Public Offering in favor of approving a Business Combination. Additionally, each Public Shareholder may elect to redeem their Public Shares,
without voting, and if they do vote, irrespective of whether they vote for or against a proposed Business Combination.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Company seeks shareholder approval of the Business Combination and the Company does not conduct redemptions pursuant to the tender offer rules, a Public Shareholder,
together with any affiliate of such shareholder or any other person with whom such shareholder is acting in concert or as a “group” (as defined under Section 13 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”)), will be restricted from redeeming its shares with respect to more than an aggregate of 15% of the Public Shares without the Company’s prior written consent.

The Sponsor and each of our officers and directors have agreed to waive their redemption rights with respect to any Founder Shares and Public Shares held by it in connection with (i) the completion of a Business
Combination and (ii) a shareholder vote to approve an amendment to the Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of Association that (A) modify the substance or timing of the Company’s obligation to allow
redemption of Class A ordinary shares in connection with the Company’s initial Business Combination or to redeem 100% of the Public Shares if the Company does not complete a Business Combination within the
Combination Period (as defined below) or (B) with respect to any other provision relating to shareholders’ rights. Additionally, the Sponsor and each of our officers and directors have agreed to waive their rights to liquidating
distributions from the Trust Account with respect to any Founder shares they hold if the Company fails to consummate a Business Combination within the Combination Period.

The Company will have until 24 months from the closing of the Initial Public Offering to consummate a Business Combination (or such extended time beyond 24 months as a result of a shareholder vote to amend its
Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of Association) (the “Combination Period”). However, if the Company has not completed a Business Combination within the Combination Period, the Company will (i) cease
all operations except for the purpose of winding up, (ii) as promptly as reasonably possible but not more than ten business days thereafter, redeem 100% of the Public Shares, at a per-share price, payable in cash, equal to the
aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust Account, including interest earned and not previously released to the Company to pay its taxes, if any (less up to $100,000 of interest to pay dissolution expenses), divided by the
number of then issued and outstanding Public Shares, which redemption will completely extinguish the rights of the Public Shareholders as shareholders (including the right to receive further liquidating distributions, if any),
and (iii) as promptly as reasonably possible following such redemption, subject to the approval of the Company’s remaining Public Shareholders and its Board of Directors, liquidate and dissolve, subject in the case of clauses
(ii) and (iii), to the Company’s obligations under Cayman Islands law to provide for claims of creditors and the requirements of other applicable law. There will be no redemption rights or liquidating distributions with
respect to the Company’s warrants, which will expire worthless if the Company fails to complete a Business Combination within the Combination Period.

F-8



 

The Sponsor and each of our officers and directors have agreed to waive its rights to liquidating distributions from the Trust Account with respect to the Founder Shares they hold if the Company fails to complete a
Business Combination within the Combination Period. However, if the Sponsor or each of our officers and directors acquire Public Shares, such Public Shares will be entitled to liquidating distributions from the Trust Account if
the Company fails to complete a Business Combination within the Combination Period. The underwriter has agreed to waive their rights to their deferred underwriting commissions (see Note 6) held in the Trust Account in the
event the Company does not complete a Business Combination within the Combination Period, and in such event, such amounts will be included with the other funds held in the Trust Account that will be available to fund the
redemption of the Public Shares. In the event of such distribution, it is possible that the per share value of the assets remaining available for distribution will be less than the Initial Public Offering price per Unit ($10.00).

In order to protect the amounts held in the Trust Account, the Sponsor has agreed that it will be liable to the Company if and to the extent any claims by a third party (other than the Company’s independent registered
public accounting firm) for services rendered or products sold to the Company, or a prospective target business with which the Company has discussed entering into a transaction agreement, reduce the amount of funds in the
Trust Account to below the lesser of (i) $10.00 per Public Share and (ii) the actual amount per Public Share held in the Trust Account as of the date of the liquidation of the Trust Account, if less than $10.00 per Public Share, due
to reductions in the value of trust assets, in each case net of the interest that may be withdrawn to pay taxes. This liability will not apply to any claims by a third party or prospective target business that executed a waiver of any
and all rights to seek access to the Trust Account and as to any claims under the Company’s indemnity of the underwriter of the Initial Public Offering against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”). In the event that an executed waiver is deemed to be unenforceable against a third party, the Sponsor will not be responsible to the extent of any liability for such third-party claims. The
Company will seek to reduce the possibility that the Sponsor will have to indemnify the Trust Account due to claims of creditors by endeavoring to have all vendors, service providers (other than the Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm), prospective target businesses or other entities with which the Company does business, execute agreements with the Company waiving any right, title, interest or claim of any kind in or to
monies held in the Trust Account.

Risks and Uncertainties

Management is currently evaluating the impact of the COVID-19 global pandemic on the industry and has concluded that while it is reasonably possible that the virus could have a negative effect on the Company’s financial
position, results of its operations, close of the Initial Public Offering and/or search for a target company, the specific impact is not readily determinable as of the date of these financial statements. The financial statements do not include
any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Liquidity

As of December 31, 2020, the Company had cash of $25,000. On February 12, 2021, the Company consummated its Initial Public Offering. The proceeds of the Initial Public Offering have made available to the Company
$1,812,418 of funds held outside of the trust account, after payment of the financial advisory fee in connection with the Initial Public Offering, the underwriter’s discount, and the IPO Promissory Note (as defined in Note 5), to be used
to fund future working capital requirements and to pay IPO expenses. Additionally, on March 26, 2021, the Sponsor committed $1,300,000 to be provided to the Company to fund working capital requirements prior to an initial
business combination. The Sponsor or an affiliate of the Sponsor may, but is not obligated to, loan the Company additional funds as may be needed by the Company. Management expects these sources of funds will provide
sufficient liquidity to fund the Company’s working capital needs through the earlier of the consummation of the initial business combination or March 29, 2022, one year after the date these financial statements were issued.
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Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) and pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
SEC.

Emerging Growth Company

The Company is an “emerging growth company,” as defined in Section 2(a) of the Securities Act, as modified by the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the “JOBS Act”), and it may take advantage of certain
exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies that are not emerging growth companies including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the auditor attestation
requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in its periodic reports and proxy statements, and exemptions from the requirements of holding a
nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation and shareholder approval of any golden parachute payments not previously approved.

Further, Section 102(b)(1) of the JOBS Act exempts emerging growth companies from being required to comply with new or revised financial accounting standards until private companies (that is, those that have
not had a Securities Act registration statement declared effective or do not have a class of securities registered under the Exchange Act) are required to comply with the new or revised financial accounting standards. The JOBS
Act provides that a company can elect to opt out of the extended transition period and comply with the requirements that apply to non-emerging growth companies but any such election to opt out is irrevocable. The Company
has elected not to opt out of such extended transition period which means that when a standard is issued or revised and it has different application dates for public or private companies, the Company, as an emerging growth
company, can adopt the new or revised standard at the time private companies adopt the new or revised standard. This may make comparison of the Company’s financial statements with another public company which is neither
an emerging growth company nor an emerging growth company which has opted out of using the extended transition period difficult or impossible because of the potential differences in accounting standards used.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of expenses during the reporting period. Estimates, by their nature, are based on judgment and available information. Therefore, actual results could
differ from those estimates and could have a material impact on the financial statements.

Deferred Offering Costs

Deferred offering costs consist of legal, accounting and other expenses incurred through the balance sheet date that are directly related to the Initial Public Offering. These costs, together with the upfront
underwriting discounts, the deferred underwriting commissions and the financial advisory fee in connection with the Initial Public Offering were charged to shareholder’s equity upon the completion of the Initial Public
Offering.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under ASC 740, "Income Taxes" ("ASC 740"). ASC 740 requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for both the expected impact of differences between the
financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities and for the expected future tax benefit to be derived from tax loss and
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tax credit carry forwards. ASC 740 additionally requires a valuation allowance to be established when it is more likely than not that all or a portion of deferred tax assets will not be realized.

ASC Topic 740 prescribes a recognition threshold and a measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. For those benefits
to be recognized, a tax position must be more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities. The Company’s management determined that the Cayman Islands is the Company’s major tax jurisdiction. The
Company recognizes accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as income tax expense. As of December 31, 2020, there were no unrecognized tax benefits and no amounts accrued for interest and
penalties. The Company is currently not aware of any issues under review that could result in significant payments, accruals or material deviation from its position.

The Company is considered to be an exempted Cayman Islands company with no connection to any other taxable jurisdiction and is presently not subject to income taxes or income tax filing requirements in the
Cayman Islands or the United States. As such, the Company’s tax provision was zero for the period presented.

Net Loss Per Ordinary Share

Net loss per share is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of ordinary shares issued and outstanding during the period, excluding ordinary shares subject to forfeiture. Weighted average
shares were reduced for the effect of an aggregate of 1,875,000 Class B ordinary shares that are subject to forfeiture depending on the extent to which the underwriter’s over-allotment option is exercised (see Note 5). At
December 31, 2020, the Company did not have any dilutive securities and other contracts that could, potentially, be exercised or converted into ordinary shares and then share in the earnings of the Company. As a result,
diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share for the period presented.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist of a cash account in a financial institution, which, at times may exceed the Federal Depository Insurance Coverage of
$250,000. The Company has not experienced losses on this account and management believes the Company is not exposed to significant risks on such accounts.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of the Company’s assets and liabilities, which qualify as financial instruments under ASC Topic 820, “Fair Value Measurement,” approximates the carrying amounts represented in the accompanying
balance sheet, primarily due to their short-term nature.

Recent Accounting Standards

Management does not believe that any recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting standards, if currently adopted, would have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements.

Note 3 - Initial Public Offering

On February 12, 2021, pursuant to the Initial Public Offering, the Company sold 57,500,000 Units, including 7,500,000 Units sold upon exercise in full of the underwriter’s over-allotment option, at a purchase price of
$10.00 per Unit. Each Unit consists of one Class A ordinary share and one-fifth of one redeemable warrant (“Public Warrant”). Each whole Public Warrant will entitle the holder to purchase one Class A ordinary share at an
exercise price of $11.50 per whole share, subject to adjustment (see Note 7).
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Note 4 - Private Placement

Simultaneously with the closing of the Initial Public Offering, the Sponsor purchased an aggregate of 9,000,000 Private Placement Warrants at a price of $1.50 per Private Placement Warrant, for an aggregate purchase
price of $13,500,000. Each Private Placement Warrant is exercisable to purchase one Class A ordinary share at a price of $11.50 per share, subject to adjustment (see Note 7). A portion of the proceeds from the Private Placement
Warrants were added to the proceeds from the Initial Public Offering to be held in the Trust Account. If the Company does not complete a Business Combination within the Combination Period, the proceeds from the sale of the
Private Placement Warrants will be used to fund the redemption of the Public Shares (subject to the requirements of applicable law) and the Private Placement Warrants will expire worthless.

Note 5 - Related Party Transactions

Founder Shares

On December 17, 2020, the Sponsor paid $25,000 to purchase an aggregate of 14,375,000 Class B ordinary shares (the “Founder Shares”). The Sponsor has agreed to forfeit up to 1,875,000 Founder Shares on the
extent to which the underwriter’s over-allotment option is exercised, so that the number of Founder Shares will equal, on an as-converted basis, approximately 20% of the Company’s issued and outstanding ordinary shares after
the Initial Public Offering.

The Sponsor and each of our officers and directors have agreed, subject to limited exceptions, not to transfer, assign or sell any of the Founder Shares until the earliest of: (i) one year after the completion of a
Business Combination and (ii) subsequent to a Business Combination, (A) if the closing price of the Class A ordinary shares equals or exceeds $12.00 per share (as adjusted for share sub-divisions, share dividends, rights
issuances, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days within any 30-trading day period commencing at least 150 days after a Business Combination, or (B) the date on which the Company completes a
liquidation, merger, share exchange or other similar transaction that results in all of the Public Shareholders having the right to exchange their Class A ordinary shares for cash, securities or other property.

IPO Promissory Note

On December 17, 2020, the Sponsor agreed to loan the Company an aggregate amount of up to $300,000 to be used to pay a portion of the expenses related to the Initial Public Offering, pursuant to an unsecured
revolving promissory note (the “IPO Promissory Note”).  The IPO Promissory Note is non-interest bearing and payable on the earlier of (i) March 31, 2021 or (ii) the completion of the Initial Public Offering. As of December 31,
2020, there was $86,750 outstanding under the IPO Promissory Note. On February 12, 2021, immediately prior to the IPO, the borrowings outstanding under the IPO Promissory Note of $187,583 were repaid in full and the IPO
Promissory Note was cancelled.

Related Party Loans

In order to fund working capital deficiencies or finance transaction costs in connection with a Business Combination, the Sponsor or an affiliate of the Sponsor has committed $1,300,000 to be provided to the
Company to fund our expenses relating to investigating and selecting a target business and other working capital requirements prior to our initial business combination. In addition, the Sponsor or an affiliate of the Sponsor may,
but are not obligated to, loan the Company additional funds as may be required (“Working Capital Loans”). If the Company completes a Business Combination, the Company may repay the Working Capital Loans out of the
proceeds of the Trust Account released to the Company. In the event that a Business Combination does not close, the Company may use a portion of proceeds held outside the Trust Account to repay the Working Capital
Loans, but no proceeds held in the Trust Account would be used to repay the Working Capital Loans. Except for the foregoing, the terms of such Working Capital Loans, if any, have not been determined and no written
agreements exist with respect to such loans. At the lender’s discretion, up to $2,000,000 of such Working Capital Loans may be convertible into warrants of the post-Business Combination entity at a price of $1.50 per warrant.
The warrants would be identical to the Private Placement Warrants. As of December 31, 2020, the Company had no outstanding borrowings under the Working Capital Loans.

F-12



 

Advisory Services

Lazard Frères & Co. LLC, an affiliate of the Company, is acting as the Company’s independent financial advisor as defined under Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”) Rule 5110(j)(9), to provide
independent financial consulting services, consisting of a review of deal structure and terms and related structuring advice in connection with the Initial Public Offering, for which it will receive a financial advisory fee, which
shall be payable upon the closing of the Initial Public Offering and upon the consummation of the Business Combination. Pursuant to the terms of the underwriting agreement, the underwriter has agreed to reimburse the Company
for a portion of the offering costs in an amount equal to the fee to be paid to Lazard Frères & Co. LLC. On February 12, 2021, the underwriter reimbursed the Company $3,000,000.

Administrative Support Agreement

The Company agreed, commencing on the date that the Company’s securities are first listed on the Nasdaq Capital Market, which was February 10, 2021, and through the earlier of the Company’s consummation of a
Business Combination and its liquidation, to pay an affiliate of the Sponsor a total of $20,000 per month for office space, secretarial and administrative support.

Note 6 - Commitments and Contingencies

Registration and Shareholders Rights

The holders of the Founder Shares, Private Placement Warrants and any warrants that may be issued upon conversion of Working Capital Loans (and any Class A ordinary shares issuable upon the exercise of the
Private Placement Warrants and the warrants that may be issued upon conversion of the Working Capital Loans) will be entitled to registration rights pursuant to a registration and shareholder rights agreement to be signed
prior to or on the effective date of the Initial Public Offering. The holders of these securities are entitled to make up to three demands, excluding short form demands, that the Company register such securities. In addition, the
holders have certain “piggy-back” registration rights with respect to registration statements filed subsequent to completion of a Business Combination. However, the registration and shareholder rights agreement provides that
the Company will not permit any registration statement filed under the Securities Act to become effective until termination of the applicable lockup period, which occurs (i) in the case of the Founder shares, as described under
the heading “Founders Shares” in Note 5, and (ii) in the case of the private placement warrants and the respective Class A ordinary shares underlying such warrants, 30 days after the completion of a Business Combination. The
registration rights agreement does not contain liquidating damages or other cash settlement provisions resulting from delays in registering the Company’s securities. The Company will bear the expenses incurred in connection
with the filing of any such registration statements.

Underwriting Agreement

The Company granted the underwriter a 45-day option to purchase up to 7,500,000 additional Units to cover over-allotments at the Initial Public Offering price, less the underwriting discounts and commissions. The
underwriter exercised this over-allotment option in full on February 10, 2021.

The underwriter is entitled to a cash underwriting discount of $0.20 per Unit, or $11,500,000 in the aggregate, which became payable upon the closing of the Initial Public Offering. In addition, the underwriter will be
entitled to a deferred commissions of $0.35 per Unit, or $17,500,000 in the aggregate (or $20,125,000 in the aggregate if the underwriter’s over- allotment option is exercised in full). The deferred commissions will become payable to
the underwriter’s from the amounts held in the Trust Account solely in the event that the Company completes a Business Combination within the time required, subject to the terms of the underwriting agreement.
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Note 7 - Shareholder’s Equity

Preference Shares

The Company is authorized to issue 5,000,000 preference shares with a par value of $0.0001 per share, with such designations, voting and other rights and preferences as may be determined from time to time by the
Company’s board of directors. At December 31, 2020, there were no preference shares issued or outstanding.

Class A Ordinary Shares

The Company is authorized to issue 500,000,000 Class A ordinary shares, with a par value of $0.0001 per share. Holders of Class A ordinary shares are entitled to one vote for each share. At December 31, 2020, there were
no Class A ordinary shares issued or outstanding.

Class B Ordinary Shares

The Company is authorized to issue 50,000,000 Class B ordinary shares, with a par value of $0.0001 per share. Holders of the Class B ordinary shares are entitled to one vote for each share. At December 31, 2020,
there were 14,375,000 Class B ordinary shares issued and outstanding. On February 10, 2021, in connection with the underwriter’s exercise of the over-allotment option in full, 1,875,000 Class B ordinary shares are no longer
subject to forfeiture.

Only holders of the Class B ordinary shares will have the right to vote on the election of directors prior to the Business Combination. Holders of Class A ordinary shares and Class B ordinary shares will vote together
as a single class on all other matters submitted to a vote of shareholders, except (i) as required by law and (ii) with respect to the election of directors.

The Class B ordinary shares will automatically convert into Class A ordinary shares at the time of a Business Combination or earlier at the option of the holders thereof at a ratio such that the number of Class A ordinary
shares issuable upon conversion of all Founder Shares will equal, in the aggregate, on an as-converted basis, 20% of the sum of (i) the total number of ordinary shares issued and outstanding upon completion of Initial Public Offering,
plus (ii) the total number of Class A ordinary shares issued or deemed issued or issuable upon conversion or exercise of any equity-linked securities or rights issued or deemed issued, by the Company in connection with or in
relation to the consummation of a Business Combination, excluding Class A ordinary shares or equity-linked securities exercisable for or convertible into Class A ordinary shares issued, deemed issued, or to be issued, to any
seller in a Business Combination and any Private Placement Warrants issued to the Sponsor, its affiliates or any member of the Company’s management team upon conversion of Working Capital Loans. In no event will the
Class B ordinary shares convert into Class A ordinary shares at a rate of less than one-to-one.

Warrants

Public Warrants may only be exercised for a whole number of shares. No fractional shares will be issued upon exercise of the Public Warrants. The Public Warrants will become exercisable on the later of (i) 30 days
after the completion of a Business Combination and (ii) one year from the closing of the Initial Public Offering. The Public Warrants will expire five years from the completion of a Business Combination or earlier upon
redemption or liquidation.

The Company will not be obligated to deliver any Class A ordinary shares pursuant to the exercise of a warrant and will have no obligation to settle such warrant exercise unless a registration statement under the
Securities Act with respect to the Class A ordinary shares underlying the warrants is then effective and a prospectus relating thereto is current, subject to the Company satisfying its obligations with respect to registration, or a
valid exemption from registration is available. No warrant will be exercisable and the Company will not be obligated to issue a Class A ordinary share upon exercise of a warrant unless the Class A ordinary share issuable upon
such warrant exercise has been registered, qualified or deemed to be exempt under the securities laws of the state of residence of the registered holder of the warrants.
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The Company has agreed that as soon as practicable, but in no event later than 20 business days after the closing of a Business Combination, it will use its commercially reasonable efforts to file with the SEC a
registration statement for the registration, under the Securities Act, of the Class A ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of the warrants, and the Company will use its commercially reasonable efforts to cause the same to
become effective within 60 business days after the closing of a Business Combination, and to maintain the effectiveness of such registration statement and a current prospectus relating to those Class A ordinary shares until
the warrants expire or are redeemed, as specified in the warrant agreement; provided that if the Class A ordinary shares are at the time of any exercise of a warrant not listed on a national securities exchange such that they
satisfy the definition of a “covered security” under Section 18(b)(1) of the Securities Act, the Company may, at its option, require holders of Public Warrants who exercise their warrants to do so on a “cashless basis” in
accordance with Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act and, in the event the Company so elects, the Company will not be required to file or maintain in effect a registration statement, but the Company will use its commercially
reasonable efforts to register or qualify the shares under applicable blue sky laws to the extent an exemption is not available. If a registration statement covering the Class A ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of the
warrants is not effective by the 60th day after the closing of a Business Combination, warrant holders may, until such time as there is an effective registration statement and during any period when the Company will have failed
to maintain an effective registration statement, exercise warrants on a “cashless basis” in accordance with Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act or another exemption, but the Company will use its commercially reasonable efforts
to register or qualify the shares under applicable blue sky laws to the extent an exemption is not available.

Redemption of warrants when the price per Class A ordinary share equals or exceeds $18.00.

Once the warrants become exercisable, the Company may redeem the outstanding warrants (except as described with respect to the Private Placement Warrants):

 • in whole and not in part;

 • at a price of $0.01 per warrant;

 • upon a minimum of 30 days’ prior written notice of redemption to each warrant holder; and

 • if, and only if, the closing price of the Class A ordinary shares equals or exceeds $18.00 per share (as adjusted) for any 20 trading days within a 30-trading day period ending three trading days before the
Company sends the notice of redemption to the warrant holders.

If and when the warrants become redeemable by the Company, the Company may exercise its redemption right even if it is unable to register or qualify the underlying securities for sale under all applicable state
securities laws.

Redemption of warrants when the price per Class A ordinary share equals or exceeds $10.00.

Once the warrants become exercisable, the Company may redeem the outstanding warrants:

 • in whole and not in part;

 • at $0.10 per warrant

 • upon a minimum of 30 days’ prior written notice of redemption; provided that holders will be able to exercise their warrants on a cashless basis prior to redemption and receive that number of shares determined
based on the redemption date and the fair market value of the Class A ordinary shares;

 • if, and only if, the closing price of the Class A ordinary shares equals or exceeds $10.00 per public share (as adjusted) on the trading day prior to the date the Company sends the notice of redemption to the
warrant holders.

If the Company calls the Public Warrants for redemption, as described above, its management will have the option to require any holder that wishes to exercise the Public Warrants to do so on a “cashless basis”. The
exercise price and number of ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of the Public Warrants may be adjusted in
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certain circumstances including in the event of a share dividend, extraordinary dividend or recapitalization, reorganization, merger or consolidation. However, except as described below, the Public Warrants will not be adjusted
for issuances of ordinary shares at a price below its exercise price. Additionally, in no event will the Company be required to net cash settle the Public Warrants. If the Company is unable to complete a Business Combination
within the Combination Period and the Company liquidates the funds held in the Trust Account, holders of Public Warrants will not receive any of such funds with respect to their Public Warrants, nor will they receive any
distribution from the Company’s assets held outside of the Trust Account with respect to such Public Warrants. Accordingly, the Public Warrants may expire worthless.

In addition, if (i) the Company issues additional Class A ordinary shares or equity-linked securities for capital raising purposes in connection with the closing of a Business Combination at an issue price or
effective issue price of less than $9.20 per Class A ordinary share (with such issue price or effective issue price to be determined in good faith by the Company’s board of directors and, in the case of any such issuance to the
Sponsor or its affiliates, without taking into account any Founder Shares held by the Sponsor or such affiliates, as applicable, prior to such issuance) (the “Newly Issued Price”), (ii) the aggregate gross proceeds from such
issuances represent more than 60% of the total equity proceeds, and interest thereon, available for the funding of a Business Combination on the date of the consummation of a Business Combination (net of redemptions), and
(iii) the volume weighted average trading price of its Class A ordinary shares during the 20 trading day period starting on the trading day prior to the day on which the Company consummates its Business Combination (such
price, the “Market Value”) is below $9.20 per share, the exercise price of the warrants will be adjusted (to the nearest cent) to be equal to 115% of the higher of the Market Value and the Newly Issued Price, and the $18.00 per
share redemption trigger price will be adjusted (to the nearest cent) to be equal to 180% of the higher of the Market Value and the Newly Issued Price, and the $10.00 per share redemption trigger price will be adjusted (to the
nearest cent) to be equal to the higher of the Market Value and the Newly Issued Price.

The Private Placement Warrants will be identical to the Public Warrants underlying the Units being sold in the Initial Public Offering, except that the Private Placement Warrants and the Class A ordinary shares
issuable upon the exercise of the Private Placement Warrants will not be transferable, assignable or salable until 30 days after the completion of a Business Combination, subject to certain limited exceptions. Additionally, the
Private Placement Warrants will be exercisable on a cashless basis and be non-redeemable, except as described above, so long as they are held by the Sponsor or its permitted transferees. If the Private Placement Warrants are
held by someone other than the initial purchasers or their permitted transferees, the Private Placement Warrants will be redeemable by the Company and exercisable by such holders on the same basis as the Public Warrants.

Note 8 - Subsequent Events

The Company evaluated subsequent events and transactions that occurred after the balance sheet date up to the date that the financial statements were issued. Based upon this review, other than as described below,
the Company did not identify any subsequent events that would have required adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements.

Initial Public Offering

The registration statement for the Company’s Initial Public Offering was declared effective on February 9, 2021. On February 12, 2021, the Company consummated the Initial Public Offering of 57,500,000 Units,
which included the underwriter’s exercise in full of its over-allotment option of 7,500,000 Units, at $10.00 per Unit, generating gross proceeds of $575,000,000, which is described in Note 3.

Simultaneously with the closing of the Initial Public Offering, the Company consummated the sale of 9,000,000 Private Placement Warrants at a price of $1.50 per Private Placement Warrant in a private placement to
the Sponsor, generating proceeds of $13,500,000.

Transaction costs amounted to $32,432,846, consisting of $11,500,000 of underwriting fees (a net fee of $8,500,000 after reimbursing the Company for $3,000,000 of financial advisory fees provided by Lazard Frères
& Co. LLC), $20,125,000 of deferred underwriting fees and $807,846 of other offering costs.
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Following the closing of the Initial Public Offering, on February 12, 2021, a total of $575,000,000, comprised of $563,500,000 of the proceeds from the sale of the Units in the Initial Public Offering and $11,500,000 of
the proceeds from the sale of the Private Placement Warrants was placed in the Trust Account.

Founder Shares

On February 5, 2021, the Sponsor transferred 25,000 of its Founder Shares to each of the Company’s five independent directors (125,000 Founder Shares in the aggregate). Further, on February 5, 2021, the Sponsor
converted into a series limited liability company and LGA HoldCo LLC, an affiliate of Lazard Ltd, provided each of the Company’s officers and certain other employees of Lazard Ltd and its subsidiaries the opportunity to purchase
certain membership interests in a series of the Sponsor (the “Series Membership Interests”) pursuant to which such persons have economic interests in certain of the Founder Shares but do not have voting rights or dispositive power
with respect thereto. In particular, as of February 12, 2021, the Company’s officers and such other employees of Lazard Ltd and its subsidiaries possess Series Membership Interests representing economic interests in approximately
30% in the aggregate of the Company’s issued and outstanding Founder Shares, including approximately 2% in the aggregate which has been provided by the Company’s officers; however, the Sponsor maintains the voting rights
attributable to, and the dispositive power in respect of, all such Founder Shares. Each of the Company’s officers and such other employees of Lazard Ltd and its subsidiaries will also be eligible to directly or indirectly purchase or
receive additional economic or other interests in the Company’s securities from Lazard Ltd and its subsidiaries, including additional Series Membership Interests, on a discretionary basis in the future.

The Sponsor, and each of the Company’s directors and officers have agreed, subject to limited exceptions, not to transfer, assign or sell any of the Founder Shares until the earliest of: (A) one year after the completion of a
Business Combination and (B) subsequent to a Business Combination, (x) if the closing price of the Class A ordinary shares equals or exceeds $12.00 per share (as adjusted for share sub-divisions, share capitalizations, reorganizations,
recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days within any 30-trading day period commencing at least 150 days after a Business Combination, or (y) the date on which the Company completes a liquidation, merger, share
exchange or other similar transaction that results in all of the Public Shareholders having the right to exchange their Class A ordinary shares for cash, securities or other property.
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DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES

We are a Cayman Islands exempted company and our affairs are governed by our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association, the Companies Act (As Revised) of the Cayman Islands (the “Companies Act”) and the
common law of the Cayman Islands. Pursuant to our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association, which were adopted prior to the consummation of our initial public offering (the “IPO”), we are authorized to issue
500,000,000 Class A ordinary shares, par value $0.0001, 50,000,000 Class B ordinary shares, par value $0.0001, and 5,000,000 preference shares, par value $0.0001. The following description summarizes the material terms of our
shares as set out more particularly in our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association. Because it is only a summary, it may not contain all the information that is important to you. Capitalized terms used herein but not
defined shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Annual Report.

Units

Each unit consists of one Class A ordinary share and one-fifth of one redeemable warrant. Each whole warrant entitles the holder thereof to purchase one Class A ordinary share at a price of $11.50 per share, subject to adjustment as
described in our IPO prospectus. Pursuant to the warrant agreement we entered into with Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company on February 9, 2021, a warrant holder may exercise its warrants only for a whole number of the
company’s Class A ordinary shares. This means only a whole warrant may be exercised at any given time by a warrant holder. We expect that the Class A ordinary shares and warrants comprising the units will begin separate trading on
the Nasdaq, under the symbols “LGAC” and “LGACW,” respectively, on the 52nd day following the date of the IPO prospectus (or, if such date is not a business day, the following business day) unless the underwriters permit earlier
separate trading and we have satisfied certain conditions. No fractional warrants will be issued upon separation of the units and only whole warrants will trade. Accordingly, unless you purchase at least five units, you will not be able to
receive or trade a whole warrant.

Additionally, the units will automatically separate into their component parts and will not be traded after completion of our initial business combination.

Ordinary Shares

As of December 31, 2020, there were 14,375,000 Class B ordinary shares issued and outstanding.

Ordinary shareholders of record are entitled to one vote for each ordinary share held on all matters to be voted on by shareholders, subject to certain exceptions. Except as described below, holders of Class A ordinary shares and holders
of Class B ordinary shares will vote together as a single class on all matters submitted to a vote of our shareholders except as required by law. Unless specified in our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association, or as
required by applicable provisions of the Companies Act or applicable stock exchange rules, the affirmative vote of a majority of our shares represented in person or by proxy and entitled to vote thereon and that are voted at a quorate
general meeting is required to approve any such matter voted on by our shareholders. Approval of certain actions will require a special resolution under Cayman Islands law, which requires the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of
our shares represented in person or by proxy and entitled to vote thereon and that are voted at a quorate general meeting (except where our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association specify a higher approval
requirement); such actions include amending our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association and approving a statutory merger or consolidation with another company. Our board of directors is divided into three
classes, each of which will generally serve for a term of three years with only one class of directors being appointed in each year. There is no cumulative voting with respect to the election of directors, with the result that the holders of
more than 50% of the shares voted for the election of directors can appoint all of the directors. Our shareholders are entitled to receive ratable dividends when, as and if declared by the board of directors out of funds legally available
therefor. Prior to our initial business combination, only holders of our founder shares will have the right to vote on the election of directors. Holders of our public shares will not be entitled to vote on the election of directors during such
time. In addition, prior to the completion of an initial business combination, holders of a majority of our founder shares may remove a member of the board of directors for any reason. The provisions of our amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association governing the

 



 

election or removal of directors prior to our initial business combination may only be amended by a special resolution passed by not less than 90% of our ordinary shares who attend and vote at our general meeting.

Because our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association authorize the issuance of up to 500,000,000 Class A ordinary shares, if we were to enter into a business combination, we may (depending on the terms of such
a business combination) be required to increase the number of Class A ordinary shares which we will be authorized to issue at the same time as our shareholders vote on the business combination to the extent we seek shareholder
approval in connection with our initial business combination.

Our board of directors is divided into three classes with only one class of directors being appointed in each year and each class (except for those directors appointed prior to our first annual general meeting) serving a three-year term. In
accordance with the Nasdaq corporate governance requirements, we are not required to hold an annual general meeting until one year after our first fiscal year end following our listing on the Nasdaq. There is no requirement under the
Companies Act for us to hold annual or general meetings to appoint directors. We may not hold an annual general meeting to appoint new directors prior to the consummation of our initial business combination. Prior to the completion
of an initial business combination, any vacancy on the board of directors may be filled by a nominee chosen by holders of a majority of our founder shares or by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors present and voting at a
meeting of our board. In addition, prior to the completion of an initial business combination, holders of a majority of our founder shares may remove a member of the board of directors for any reason.

We will provide our public shareholders with the opportunity to redeem all or a portion of their public shares upon the completion of our initial business combination at a per-share price, payable in cash, equal to the aggregate amount
then on deposit in the trust account (the “Trust Account”) calculated as of two business days prior to the consummation of our initial business combination, including interest earned on the funds held in the Trust Account and not
previously released to us to pay our taxes, if any, divided by the number of the then-outstanding public shares, subject to the limitations described herein. As of the consummation of the IPO, the amount in the Trust Account was
anticipated to be $10.00 per public share. The per share amount we will distribute to investors who properly redeem their shares will not be reduced by the deferred underwriting commissions we will pay to the underwriters. The
redemption rights will include the requirement that a beneficial owner must identify itself in order to validly redeem its shares. Our sponsor and each of our directors and officers have entered into an agreement with us, pursuant to
which they have agreed to waive their redemption rights with respect to any founder shares and public shares held by them in connection with (i) the completion of our initial business combination, and (ii) a shareholder vote to approve
an amendment to our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association (A) that would modify the substance or timing of our obligation to provide holders of our Class A ordinary shares the right to have their shares
redeemed in connection with our initial business combination or to redeem 100% of our public shares if we do not complete our initial business combination within 24 months from the closing of the IPO or (B) with respect to any other
provision relating to the rights of holders of our Class A ordinary shares.

Unlike many blank check companies that hold shareholder votes and conduct proxy solicitations in conjunction with their initial business combinations and provide for related redemptions of public shares for cash upon completion of
such initial business combinations even when a vote is not required by law, if a shareholder vote is not required by applicable law or stock exchange listing requirements and we do not decide to hold a shareholder vote for business or
other reasons, we will, pursuant to our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association, conduct the redemptions pursuant to the tender offer rules of the SEC, and file tender offer documents with the SEC prior to
completing our initial business combination. Our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association require these tender offer documents to contain substantially the same financial and other information about the initial
business combination and the redemption rights as is required under the SEC’s proxy rules. If, however, a shareholder approval of the transaction is required by applicable law or stock exchange listing requirements, or we decide to
obtain shareholder approval for business or other reasons, we will, like many blank check companies, offer to redeem shares in conjunction with a proxy solicitation pursuant to the proxy rules and not pursuant to the tender offer rules.
If we seek shareholder approval, we will complete our initial business combination only if we obtain the approval of an ordinary resolution under Cayman Islands law, which requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares
represented in person or by proxy and entitled to vote thereon and who vote at a quorate general meeting. However, the participation of our sponsor, officers, directors, advisors or their affiliates in privately-negotiated transactions, if
any, could result in the approval of our initial business combination even if a majority of our public shareholders vote, or indicate their intention to vote, against such initial business combination. For purposes of

 



 

seeking approval of the majority of our issued and outstanding ordinary shares, non-votes will have no effect on the approval of our initial business combination once a quorum is obtained. Our amended and restated memorandum and
articles of association require that at least five days’ notice will be given of any general meeting.

If we seek shareholder approval of our initial business combination and we do not conduct redemptions in connection with our initial business combination pursuant to the tender offer rules, our amended and restated memorandum and
articles of association provide that a public shareholder, together with any affiliate of such shareholder or any other person with whom such shareholder is acting in concert or as a “group” (as defined under Section 13 of the Exchange
Act), will be restricted from redeeming its shares with respect to more than an aggregate of 15% of the shares sold in the IPO, which we refer to as the “Excess Shares”, without our prior consent. However, we would not be restricting
our shareholders’ ability to vote all of their shares (including Excess Shares) for or against our initial business combination. Our shareholders’ inability to redeem the Excess Shares will reduce their influence over our ability to
complete our initial business combination, and such shareholders could suffer a material loss in their investment if they sell such Excess Shares on the open market. Additionally, such shareholders will not receive redemption
distributions with respect to the Excess Shares if we complete our initial business combination. And, as a result, such shareholders will continue to hold that number of shares exceeding 15% and, in order to dispose such shares would
be required to sell their shares in open market transactions, potentially at a loss.

If we seek shareholder approval, we will complete our initial business combination only if we obtain the approval of an ordinary resolution under Cayman Islands law, which requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares
represented in person or by proxy and entitled to vote thereon and who vote at a quorate general meeting. In such case, our sponsor and of our directors and officers have agreed to vote their founder shares and public shares in favor of
our initial business combination. Additionally, each public shareholder may elect to redeem their public shares irrespective of whether they vote for or against the proposed transaction or vote at all.

Pursuant to our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association, if we have not consummated an initial business combination within 24 months from the closing of the IPO or during any extended time that we have to
consummate a business combination beyond 24 months as a result of a shareholder vote to amend our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association (“Extension Period”), we will (i) cease all operations except for the
purpose of winding up; (ii) as promptly as reasonably possible but not more than ten business days thereafter, redeem the public shares, at a per-share price, payable in cash, equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust
Account, including interest earned on the funds held in the Trust Account and not previously released to us to pay our taxes, if any (less up to $100,000 of interest to pay dissolution expenses) divided by the number of the then-
outstanding public shares, which redemption will completely extinguish public shareholders’ rights as shareholders (including the right to receive further liquidation distributions, if any); and (iii) as promptly as reasonably possible
following such redemption, subject to the approval of our remaining shareholders and our board of directors, liquidate and dissolve, subject in the case of clauses (ii) and (iii), to our obligations under Cayman Islands law to provide for
claims of creditors and the requirements of other applicable law. Our sponsor and each of our directors and officers have entered into an agreement with us, pursuant to which they have agreed to waive their rights to liquidating
distributions from the Trust Account with respect to any founder shares they hold if we fail to consummate an initial business combination within 24 months from the closing of the IPO or during any Extension Period thereof (although
they will be entitled to liquidating distributions from the Trust Account with respect to any public shares they hold if we fail to complete our initial business combination within the prescribed time frame). Our amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association provide that, if we wind up for any other reason prior to the consummation of our initial business combination, we will follow the foregoing procedures with respect to the liquidation of the Trust
Account as promptly as reasonably possible but not more than ten business days thereafter, subject to applicable Cayman Islands law.

In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the company after a business combination, our shareholders are entitled to share ratably in all assets remaining available for distribution to them after payment of liabilities and
after provision is made for each class of shares, if any, having preference over the ordinary shares. Our shareholders have no preemptive or other subscription rights. There are no sinking fund provisions applicable to the ordinary
shares, except that we will provide our public shareholders with the opportunity to redeem their public shares for cash at a per share price equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust Account, including interest earned on
the funds held in the Trust Account and not previously released to us to pay our taxes, if any,

 



 
divided by the number of the then-outstanding public shares, upon the completion of our initial business combination, subject to the limitations described herein.

Founder Shares

The founder shares are designated as Class B ordinary shares and, except as described below, are identical to the Class A ordinary shares, and holders of founder shares have the same shareholder rights as public shareholders, except
that: (a) prior to our initial business combination, only holders of the founder shares have the right to vote on the election of directors and holders of a majority of our founder shares may remove a member of the board of directors for
any reason; (b) the founder shares are subject to certain transfer restrictions, as described in more detail below; (c) our sponsor and each of our directors and officers have entered into an agreement with us, pursuant to which they have
agreed to (i) waive their redemption rights with respect to their founder shares and public shares in connection with the completion of our initial business combination; (ii) waive their redemption rights with respect to their founder
shares and public shares in connection with a shareholder vote to approve an amendment to our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association (A) that would modify the substance or timing of our obligation to provide
holders of our Class A ordinary shares the right to have their shares redeemed in connection with our initial business combination or to redeem 100% of our public shares if we do not complete our initial business combination within 24
months from the closing of the IPO or (B) with respect to any other provision relating to the rights of holders of our Class A ordinary shares; and (iii) waive their rights to liquidating distributions from the Trust Account with respect to
any founder shares they hold if we fail to consummate an initial business combination within 24 months from the closing of the IPO or during any Extension Period (although they will be entitled to liquidating distributions from the
Trust Account with respect to any public shares they hold if we fail to complete our initial business combination within the prescribed time frame); (d) the founder shares will automatically convert into our Class A ordinary shares at the
time of our initial business combination or earlier at the option of the holders thereof on a one-for-one basis, subject to adjustment pursuant to certain anti-dilution rights, as described herein; and (e) the founder shares are entitled to
registration rights. If we seek shareholder approval, we will complete our initial business combination only if we obtain the approval of an ordinary resolution under Cayman Islands law, which requires the affirmative vote of a majority
of the shares represented in person or by proxy and entitled to vote thereon and who vote at a quorate general meeting. In such case, our sponsor and each of our directors and officers have agreed to vote their founder shares and public
shares in favor of our initial business combination.

The founder shares will automatically convert into Class A ordinary shares (which such Class A ordinary shares delivered upon conversion will not have redemption rights or be entitled to liquidating distributions from the Trust
Account if we do not consummate an initial business combination) at the time of our initial business combination or earlier at the option of the holders thereof at a ratio such that the number of Class A ordinary shares issuable upon
conversion of all founder shares will equal, in the aggregate, on an as-converted basis, 20% of the sum of (i) the total number of ordinary shares issued and outstanding upon completion of the IPO, plus (ii) the total number of Class A
ordinary shares issued or deemed issued or issuable upon conversion or exercise of any equity-linked securities or rights issued or deemed issued, by the company in connection with or in relation to the consummation of the initial
business combination, excluding Class A ordinary shares or equity-linked securities exercisable for or convertible into Class A ordinary shares issued, deemed issued, or to be issued, to any seller in the initial business combination and
any private placement warrants issued to our sponsor or its affiliates upon conversion of working capital loans. In no event will the Class B ordinary shares convert into Class A ordinary shares at a rate of less than one-to-one.

Except as described herein, our sponsor and our directors and officers have agreed not to transfer, assign or sell any of their founder shares until the earliest of (A) one year after the completion of our initial business combination and
(B) subsequent to our initial business combination, (x) if the closing price of our Class A ordinary shares equals or exceeds $12.00 per share (as adjusted for share sub-divisions, share capitalizations, reorganizations, recapitalizations
and the like) for any 20 trading days within any 30-trading day period commencing at least 150 days after our initial business combination, or (y) the date on which we complete a liquidation, merger, share exchange or other similar
transaction that results in all of our public shareholders having the right to exchange their ordinary shares for cash, securities or other property. Any permitted transferees would be subject to the same restrictions and other agreements of
our sponsor and our directors and officers with respect to any founder shares.

 



 

Prior to our initial business combination, only holders of our founder shares will have the right to vote on the election of directors. Holders of our public shares will not be entitled to vote on the election of directors during such time. In
addition, prior to the completion of an initial business combination, holders of a majority of our founder shares may remove a member of the board of directors for any reason. These provisions of our amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association may only be amended by a special resolution passed by not less than 90% of our ordinary shares who attend and vote at our general meeting. With respect to any other matter submitted to a vote
of our shareholders, including any vote in connection with our initial business combination, except as required by law, holders of our founder shares and holders of our public shares will vote together as a single class, with each share
entitling the holder to one vote.

Register of Members

Under Cayman Islands law, we must keep a register of members (shareholders) and there will be entered therein:

 • the names and addresses of the members, a statement of the shares held by each member, and of the amount paid or agreed to be considered as paid, on the shares of each member and the voting rights of shares of each
member;

 • the date on which the name of any person was entered on the register as a member; and

 • the date on which any person ceased to be a member.

Under Cayman Islands law, the register of members of our company is prima facie evidence of the matters set out therein (i.e., the register of members will raise a presumption of fact on the matters referred to above unless rebutted)
and a member registered in the register of members will be deemed as a matter of Cayman Islands law to have legal title to the shares as set against its name in the register of members. However, there are certain limited circumstances
where an application may be made to a Cayman Islands court for a determination on whether the register of members reflects the correct legal position. Further, the Cayman Islands court has the power to order that the register of
members maintained by a company should be rectified where it considers that the register of members does not reflect the correct legal position. If an application for an order for rectification of the register of members were made in
respect of our ordinary shares, then the validity of such shares may be subject to re-examination by a Cayman Islands court.

Preference Shares

Our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association authorize 5,000,000 preference shares and provide that preference shares may be issued from time to time in one or more series. Our board of directors will be
authorized to fix the voting rights, if any, designations, powers, preferences, the relative, participating, optional or other special rights and any qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereof, applicable to the shares of each series.
Our board of directors will be able to, without shareholder approval, issue preference shares with voting and other rights that could adversely affect the voting power and other rights of the holders of the ordinary shares and could have
anti-takeover effects. The ability of our board of directors to issue preference shares without shareholder approval could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change of control of us or the removal of existing
management. We have no preference shares issued and outstanding at the date hereof. Although we do not currently intend to issue any preference shares, we cannot assure you that we will not do so in the future.

Warrants

Public Shareholders’ Warrants

Each whole warrant entitles the registered holder to purchase one Class A ordinary share at a price of $11.50 per share, subject to adjustment as discussed below, at any time commencing on the later of one year from the closing of the
IPO and 30 days after the completion of our initial business combination, except as discussed in the immediately succeeding paragraph. Pursuant to the warrant agreement, a warrant holder may exercise its warrants only for a whole
number of Class A ordinary shares. This means only a whole warrant may be exercised at a given time by a warrant holder. No fractional warrants will be issued upon separation of the units and only whole warrants will

 



 

trade. Accordingly, unless you purchase at least five units, you will not be able to receive or trade a whole warrant. The warrants will expire five years after the completion of our initial business combination, at 5:00 p.m., New York
City time, or earlier upon redemption or liquidation.

We will not be obligated to deliver any Class A ordinary shares pursuant to the exercise of a warrant and will have no obligation to settle such warrant exercise unless a registration statement under the Securities Act with respect to the
Class A ordinary shares underlying the warrants is then effective and a prospectus relating thereto is current, subject to our satisfying our obligations described below with respect to registration, or a valid exemption from registration is
available. No warrant will be exercisable and we will not be obligated to issue a Class A ordinary share upon exercise of a warrant unless the Class A ordinary share issuable upon such warrant exercise has been registered, qualified or
deemed to be exempt under the securities laws of the state of residence of the registered holder of the warrants. In the event that the conditions in the two immediately preceding sentences are not satisfied with respect to a warrant, the
holder of such warrant will not be entitled to exercise such warrant and such warrant may have no value and expire worthless. In no event will we be required to net cash settle any warrant. In the event that a registration statement is not
effective for the exercised warrants, the purchaser of a unit containing such warrant will have paid the full purchase price for the unit solely for the Class A ordinary share underlying such unit.

We have agreed that as soon as practicable, but in no event later than twenty business days after the closing of our initial business combination, we will use our commercially reasonable efforts to file with the SEC a registration
statement for the registration, under the Securities Act, of the Class A ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of the warrants, and we will use our commercially reasonable efforts to cause the same to become effective within 60
business days after the closing of our initial business combination, and to maintain the effectiveness of such registration statement and a current prospectus relating to those Class A ordinary shares until the warrants expire or are
redeemed, as specified in the warrant agreement; provided that if our Class A ordinary shares are at the time of any exercise of a warrant not listed on a national securities exchange such that they satisfy the definition of a “covered
security” under Section 18(b)(1) of the Securities Act, we may, at our option, require holders of public warrants who exercise their warrants to do so on a “cashless basis” in accordance with Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act and, in
the event we so elect, we will not be required to file or maintain in effect a registration statement, but we will use our commercially reasonably efforts to register or qualify the shares under applicable blue sky laws to the extent an
exemption is not available. If a registration statement covering the Class A ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of the warrants is not effective by the 60th business day after the closing of the initial business combination, warrant
holders may, until such time as there is an effective registration statement and during any period when we will have failed to maintain an effective registration statement, exercise warrants on a “cashless basis” in accordance with
Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act or another exemption, but we will use our commercially reasonably efforts to register or qualify the shares under applicable blue sky laws to the extent an exemption is not available. In such event,
each holder would pay the exercise price by surrendering the warrants for that number of Class A ordinary shares equal to the lesser of (A) the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the product of the number of Class A ordinary shares
underlying the warrants, multiplied by the excess of the “fair market value” (defined below) less the exercise price of the warrants by (y) the fair market value and (B) 0.361 per warrant. The “fair market value” as used in this paragraph
shall mean the volume weighted average price of the Class A ordinary shares for the 10 trading days ending on the trading day prior to the date on which the notice of exercise is received by the warrant agent.

Redemption of warrants when the price per Class A ordinary share equals or exceeds $18.00.

Once the warrants become exercisable, we may redeem the outstanding warrants (except as described herein with respect to the private placement warrants):

 • in whole and not in part;

 • at a price of $0.01 per warrant;

 • upon a minimum of 30 days’ prior written notice of redemption to each warrant holder; and

 • if, and only if, the closing price of the Class A ordinary shares equals or exceeds $18.00 per share (as adjusted for adjustments to the number of shares issuable upon exercise or the exercise price of a warrant as

 



 

 described under the heading “— Warrants—Public Shareholders’ Warrants-Anti-Dilution Adjustments”) for any 20 trading days within a 30-trading day period ending on the third trading day prior to the date on which
we send the notice of redemption to the warrant holders.

We will not redeem the warrants as described above unless a registration statement under the Securities Act covering the issuance of the Class A ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of the warrants is then effective and a current
prospectus relating to those Class A ordinary shares is available throughout the 30-day redemption period. If and when the warrants become redeemable by us, we may exercise our redemption right even if we are unable to register or
qualify the underlying securities for sale under all applicable state securities laws.

We have established the last of the redemption criterion discussed above to prevent a redemption call unless there is at the time of the call a significant premium to the warrant exercise price. If the foregoing conditions are satisfied and
we issue a notice of redemption of the warrants, each warrant holder will be entitled to exercise his, her or its warrant prior to the scheduled redemption date. However, the price of the Class A ordinary shares may fall below the $18.00
redemption trigger price (as adjusted for adjustments to the number of shares issuable upon exercise or the exercise price of a warrant as described under the heading “— Warrants — Public Shareholders’ Warrants — Anti-dilution
Adjustments”) as well as the $11.50 (for whole shares) warrant exercise price after the redemption notice is issued.

If we call the warrants for redemption as described above, our management will have the option to require all holders that wish to exercise warrants to do so on a “cashless basis.” In determining whether to require all holders to exercise
their warrants on a “cashless basis,” our management will consider, among other factors, our cash position, the number of warrants that are outstanding and the dilutive effect on our shareholders of issuing the maximum number of
Class A ordinary shares issuable upon the exercise of our warrants. In such event, each holder would pay the exercise price by surrendering the warrants for that number of Class A ordinary shares equal to the lesser of (A) the quotient
obtained by dividing (x) the product of the number of Class A ordinary shares underlying the warrants, multiplied by the excess of the fair market value of our Class A ordinary shares over the exercise price of the warrants by (y) the
fair market value and (B) 0.361 per warrant.

Redemption of warrants when the price per Class A ordinary share equals or exceeds $10.00.

Once the warrants become exercisable, we may redeem the outstanding warrants (except as described herein with respect to the private placement warrants):

 • in whole and not in part;

 • at a price of $0.10 per warrant upon a minimum of 30 days’ prior written notice of redemption; provided that holders will be able to exercise their warrants on a cashless basis prior to redemption and receive that
number of shares determined by reference to the table below, based on the redemption date and the “fair market value” of our Class A ordinary shares except as otherwise described below; and

 • if, and only if, the closing price of our Class A ordinary shares equals or exceeds $10.00 per public share (as adjusted for adjustments to the number of shares issuable upon exercise or the exercise price of a warrant as
described under the heading “— Warrants-Public Shareholders’ Warrants-Anti-Dilution Adjustments”) on the trading day prior to the date on which we send the notice of redemption to the warrant holders.

Beginning on the date the notice of redemption is given until the warrants are redeemed or exercised, holders may elect to exercise their warrants on a cashless basis. The numbers in the table below represent the number of Class A
ordinary shares that a warrant holder will receive upon such cashless exercise in connection with redemption by us pursuant to this redemption feature, based on the “fair market value” of our Class A ordinary shares on the
corresponding redemption date (assuming holders elect to exercise their warrants and such warrants are not redeemed for $0.10 per warrant), determined for these purposes based on volume weighted average price of our Class A
ordinary shares for the 10 trading days ending on the third trading day prior to the date on which the notice of redemption is sent to the holders of warrants, and the number of months that the corresponding redemption date

 



 

precedes the expiration date of the warrants, each as set forth in the table below. We will provide our warrant holders with the final fair market value no later than one business day after the 10-trading day period described above ends.

Pursuant to the warrant agreement, references above to Class A ordinary shares shall include a security other than Class A ordinary shares into which the Class A ordinary shares have been converted or exchanged for in the event we
are not the surviving company in our initial business combination. The numbers in the table below will not be adjusted when determining the number of Class A ordinary shares to be issued upon exercise of the warrants if we are not
the surviving entity following our initial business combination.

The share prices set forth in the column headings of the table below will be adjusted as of any date on which the number of shares issuable upon exercise of a warrant or the exercise price of a warrant is adjusted as set forth under the
heading “— Anti-dilution Adjustments” below. If the number of shares issuable upon exercise of a warrant is adjusted, the adjusted share prices in the column headings will equal the share prices immediately prior to such adjustment,
multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which is the exercise price of the warrant after such adjustment and the denominator of which is the price of the warrant immediately prior to such adjustment. In such an event, the number of
shares in the table below shall be adjusted by multiplying such share amounts by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of shares deliverable upon exercise of a warrant immediately prior to such adjustment and the
denominator of which is the number of shares deliverable upon exercise of a warrant as so adjusted. If the exercise price of a warrant is adjusted, (a) in the case of an adjustment pursuant to the fifth paragraph under the heading “—
Anti-dilution Adjustments” below, the adjusted share prices in the column headings will equal the unadjusted share price multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which is the higher of the Market Value and the Newly Issued Price as
set forth under the heading “— Anti-dilution Adjustments” and the denominator of which is $10.00 and (b) in the case of an adjustment pursuant to the second paragraph under the heading “— Anti-dilution Adjustments” below, the
adjusted share prices in the column headings will equal the unadjusted share price less the decrease in the exercise price of a warrant pursuant to such exercise price adjustment.
 
Redemption Date  Fair Market Value of Class A Ordinary Shares  
(period to expiration
of warrants)  ≤$10.00   $11.00   $12.00   $13.00   $14.00   $15.00   $16.00   $17.00   ≥$18.00  
60 months   0.261   0.281   0.297   0.311   0.324   0.337   0.348   0.358   0.361 
57 months   0.257   0.277   0.294   0.310   0.324   0.337   0.348   0.358   0.361 
54 months   0.252   0.272   0.291   0.307   0.322   0.335   0.347   0.357   0.361 
51 months   0.246   0.268   0.287   0.304   0.320   0.333   0.346   0.357   0.361 
48 months   0.241   0.263   0.283   0.301   0.317   0.332   0.344   0.356   0.361 
45 months   0.235   0.258   0.279   0.298   0.315   0.330   0.343   0.356   0.361 
42 months   0.228   0.252   0.274   0.294   0.312   0.328   0.342   0.355   0.361 
39 months   0.221   0.246   0.269   0.290   0.309   0.325   0.340   0.354   0.361 
36 months   0.213   0.239   0.263   0.285   0.305   0.323   0.339   0.353   0.361 
33 months   0.205   0.232   0.257   0.280   0.301   0.320   0.337   0.352   0.361 
30 months   0.196   0.224   0.250   0.274   0.297   0.316   0.335   0.351   0.361 
27 months   0.185   0.214   0.242   0.268   0.291   0.313   0.332   0.350   0.361 
24 months   0.173   0.204   0.233   0.260   0.285   0.308   0.329   0.348   0.361 
21 months   0.161   0.193   0.223   0.252   0.279   0.304   0.326   0.347   0.361 
18 months   0.146   0.179   0.211   0.242   0.271   0.298   0.322   0.345   0.361 
15 months   0.130   0.164   0.197   0.230   0.262   0.291   0.317   0.342   0.361 
12 months   0.111   0.146   0.181   0.216   0.250   0.282   0.312   0.339   0.361 
9 months   0.090   0.125   0.162   0.199   0.237   0.272   0.305   0.336   0.361 
6 months   0.065   0.099   0.137   0.178   0.219   0.259   0.296   0.331   0.361 
3 months   0.034   0.065   0.104   0.150   0.197   0.243   0.286   0.326   0.361 
0 months   —   —   0.042   0.115   0.179   0.233   0.281   0.323   0.361 
 
The exact fair market value and redemption date may not be set forth in the table above, in which case, if the fair market value is between two values in the table or the redemption date is between two redemption dates in the table, the
number of Class A ordinary shares to be issued for each warrant exercised will be determined by a straight-line

 



 
interpolation between the number of shares set forth for the higher and lower fair market values and the earlier and later redemption dates, as applicable, based on a 365 or 366-day year, as applicable. For example, if the volume
weighted average price of our Class A ordinary shares for the 10 trading days ending on the third trading day prior to the date on which the notice of redemption is sent to the holders of the warrants is $11.00 per share, and at such time
there are 57 months until the expiration of the warrants, holders may choose to, in connection with this redemption feature, exercise their warrants for 0.277 Class A ordinary shares for each whole warrant. For an example where the
exact fair market value and redemption date are not as set forth in the table above, if the volume weighted average price of our Class A ordinary shares for the 10 trading days ending on the third trading day prior to the date on which
the notice of redemption is sent to the holders of the warrants is $13.50 per share, and at such time there are 38 months until the expiration of the warrants, holders may choose to, in connection with this redemption feature, exercise
their warrants for 0.298 Class A ordinary shares for each whole warrant. In no event will the warrants be exercisable on a cashless basis in connection with this redemption feature for more than 0.361 Class A ordinary shares per
warrant (subject to adjustment). Finally, as reflected in the table above, if the warrants are out of the money and about to expire, they cannot be exercised on a cashless basis in connection with a redemption by us pursuant to this
redemption feature, since they will not be exercisable for any Class A ordinary shares.

This redemption feature differs from the typical warrant redemption features used by many other blank check companies, which typically only provide for a redemption of warrants for cash (other than the private placement warrants)
when the trading price for the Class A ordinary shares exceeds $18.00 per share for a specified period of time. This redemption feature is structured to allow for all of the outstanding warrants to be redeemed when the Class A ordinary
shares are trading at or above $10.00 per public share, which may be at a time when the trading price of our Class A ordinary shares is below the exercise price of the warrants. We have established this redemption feature to provide us
with the flexibility to redeem the warrants without the warrants having to reach the $18.00 per share threshold set forth above under “— Redemption of warrants when the price per Class A ordinary share equals or exceeds $18.00.”
Holders choosing to exercise their warrants in connection with a redemption pursuant to this feature will, in effect, receive a number of shares for their warrants based on an option pricing model with a fixed volatility input as of the
date of the IPO prospectus. This redemption right provides us with an additional mechanism by which to redeem all of the outstanding warrants, and therefore have certainty as to our capital structure as the warrants would no longer be
outstanding and would have been exercised or redeemed. We will be required to pay the applicable redemption price to warrant holders if we choose to exercise this redemption right and it will allow us to quickly proceed with a
redemption of the warrants if we determine it is in our best interest to do so. As such, we would redeem the warrants in this manner when we believe it is in our best interest to update our capital structure to remove the warrants and pay
the redemption price to the warrant holders.

As stated above, we can redeem the warrants when the Class A ordinary shares are trading at a price starting at $10.00, which is below the exercise price of $11.50, because it will provide certainty with respect to our capital structure
and cash position while providing warrant holders with the opportunity to exercise their warrants on a cashless basis for the applicable number of shares. If we choose to redeem the warrants when the Class A ordinary shares are trading
at a price below the exercise price of the warrants, this could result in the warrant holders receiving fewer Class A ordinary shares than they would have received if they had chosen to wait to exercise their warrants for Class A ordinary
shares if and when such Class A ordinary shares were trading at a price higher than the exercise price of $11.50.

No fractional Class A ordinary shares will be issued upon exercise. If, upon exercise, a holder would be entitled to receive a fractional interest in a share, we will round down to the nearest whole number of the number of Class A
ordinary shares to be issued to the holder. If, at the time of redemption, the warrants are exercisable for a security other than the Class A ordinary shares pursuant to the warrant agreement (for instance, if we are not the surviving
company in our initial business combination), the warrants may be exercised for such security. At such time as the warrants become exercisable for a security other than the Class A ordinary shares, the company (or surviving company)
will use its commercially reasonable efforts to register under the Securities Act the security issuable upon the exercise of the warrants.

 



 

Redemption Procedures.

A holder of a warrant may notify us in writing in the event it elects to be subject to a requirement that such holder will not have the right to exercise such warrant, to the extent that after giving effect to such exercise, such person
(together with such person’s affiliates), to the warrant agent’s actual knowledge, would beneficially own in excess of 9.8% (or such other amount as a holder may specify) of the Class A ordinary shares issued and outstanding
immediately after giving effect to such exercise.

Anti-dilution Adjustments.

If the number of outstanding Class A ordinary shares is increased by a capitalization or share dividend payable in Class A ordinary shares, or by a split-up of ordinary shares or other similar event, then, on the effective date of such
capitalization or share dividend, split-up or similar event, the number of Class A ordinary shares issuable on exercise of each warrant will be increased in proportion to such increase in the outstanding ordinary shares. A rights offering
made to all or substantially all holders of ordinary shares entitling holders to purchase Class A ordinary shares at a price less than the “historical fair market value” (as defined below) will be deemed a share dividend of a number of
Class A ordinary shares equal to the product of (i) the number of Class A ordinary shares actually sold in such rights offering (or issuable under any other equity securities sold in such rights offering that are convertible into or
exercisable for Class A ordinary shares) and (ii) one minus the quotient of (x) the price per Class A ordinary share paid in such rights offering and (y) the historical fair market value. For these purposes, (i) if the rights offering is for
securities convertible into or exercisable for Class A ordinary shares, in determining the price payable for Class A ordinary shares, there will be taken into account any consideration received for such rights, as well as any additional
amount payable upon exercise or conversion and (ii) “historical fair market value” means the volume weighted average price of Class A ordinary shares as reported during the 10 trading day period ending on the trading day prior to the
first date on which the Class A ordinary shares trade on the applicable exchange or in the applicable market, regular way, without the right to receive such rights.

In addition, if we, at any time while the warrants are outstanding and unexpired, pay a dividend or make a distribution in cash, securities or other assets to all or substantially all of the holders of the Class A ordinary shares on account of
such Class A ordinary shares (or other securities into which the warrants are convertible), other than (a) as described above, (b) any cash dividends or cash distributions which, when combined on a per share basis with all other cash
dividends and cash distributions paid on the Class A ordinary shares during the 365-day period ending on the date of declaration of such dividend or distribution does not exceed $0.50 (as adjusted to appropriately reflect any other
adjustments and excluding cash dividends or cash distributions that resulted in an adjustment to the exercise price or to the number of Class A ordinary shares issuable on exercise of each warrant) but only with respect to the amount of
the aggregate cash dividends or cash distributions equal to or less than $0.50 per share, (c) to satisfy the redemption rights of the holders of Class A ordinary shares in connection with a proposed initial business combination, (d) to
satisfy the redemption rights of the holders of Class A ordinary shares in connection with a shareholder vote to amend our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association (A) to modify the substance or timing of our
obligation to provide holders of our Class A ordinary shares the right to have their shares redeemed in connection with our initial business combination or to redeem 100% of our public shares if we do not complete our initial business
combination within 24 months from the closing of the IPO or (B) with respect to any other provision relating to the rights of holders of our Class A ordinary shares, or (e) in connection with the redemption of our public shares upon our
failure to complete our initial business combination, then the warrant exercise price will be decreased, effective immediately after the effective date of such event, by the amount of cash and/or the fair market value of any securities or
other assets paid on each Class A ordinary share in respect of such event.

If the number of outstanding Class A ordinary shares is decreased by a consolidation, combination, reverse share sub-division or reclassification of Class A ordinary shares or other similar event, then, on the effective date of such
consolidation, combination, reverse share sub-division, reclassification or similar event, the number of Class A ordinary shares issuable on exercise of each warrant will be decreased in proportion to such decrease in outstanding Class
A ordinary shares.

Whenever the number of Class A ordinary shares purchasable upon the exercise of the warrants is adjusted, as described above, the warrant exercise price will be adjusted by multiplying the warrant exercise price immediately

 



 

prior to such adjustment by a fraction (x) the numerator of which will be the number of Class A ordinary shares purchasable upon the exercise of the warrants immediately prior to such adjustment and (y) the denominator of which will
be the number of Class A ordinary shares so purchasable immediately thereafter.

In addition, if (x) we issue additional Class A ordinary shares or equity-linked securities for capital raising purposes in connection with the closing of our initial business combination at an issue price or effective issue price of less than
$9.20 per ordinary share (with such issue price or effective issue price to be determined in good faith by our board of directors and, in the case of any such issuance to our sponsor or its affiliates, without taking into account any founder
shares held by our sponsor or such affiliates, as applicable, prior to such issuance) (the “Newly Issued Price”), (y) the aggregate gross proceeds from such issuances represent more than 60% of the total equity proceeds, and interest
thereon, available for the funding of our initial business combination on the date of the consummation of our initial business combination (net of redemptions), and (z) the volume weighted average trading price of our Class A ordinary
shares during the 20 trading day period starting on the trading day prior to the day on which we consummate our initial business combination (such price, the “Market Value”) is below $9.20 per share, the exercise price of the warrants
will be adjusted (to the nearest cent) to be equal to 115% of the higher of the Market Value and the Newly Issued Price, the $18.00 per share redemption trigger price described above under “— Redemption of warrants when the price
per Class A ordinary share equals or exceeds $18.00” will be adjusted (to the nearest cent) to be equal to 180% of the higher of the Market Value and the Newly Issued Price, and the $10.00 per share redemption trigger price described
above under “— Redemption of warrants when the price per Class A ordinary share equals or exceeds $10.00” will be adjusted (to the nearest cent) to be equal to the higher of the Market Value and the Newly Issued Price.

In case of any reclassification or reorganization of the outstanding Class A ordinary shares (other than those described above or that solely affects the par value of such Class A ordinary shares), or in the case of any merger or
consolidation of us with or into another corporation or entity (other than a consolidation or merger in which we are the continuing corporation and that does not result in any reclassification or reorganization of our outstanding Class A
ordinary shares), or in the case of any sale or conveyance to another corporation or entity of the assets or other property of us as an entirety or substantially as an entirety in connection with which we are dissolved, the holders of the
warrants will thereafter have the right to purchase and receive, upon the basis and upon the terms and conditions specified in the warrants and in lieu of the Class A ordinary shares immediately theretofore purchasable and receivable
upon the exercise of the rights represented thereby, the kind and amount of Class A ordinary shares or other securities or property (including cash) receivable upon such reclassification, reorganization, merger or consolidation, or upon a
dissolution following any such sale or transfer, that the holder of the warrants would have received if such holder had exercised their warrants immediately prior to such event. However, if such holders were entitled to exercise a right of
election as to the kind or amount of securities, cash or other assets receivable upon such consolidation or merger, then the kind and amount of securities, cash or other assets for which each warrant will become exercisable will be
deemed to be the weighted average of the kind and amount received per share by such holders in such consolidation or merger that affirmatively make such election, and if a tender, exchange or redemption offer has been made to and
accepted by such holders (other than a tender, exchange or redemption offer made by the company in connection with redemption rights held by shareholders of the company as provided for in the company’s amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association or as a result of the redemption of Class A ordinary shares by the company if a proposed initial business combination is presented to the shareholders of the company for approval) under
circumstances in which, upon completion of such tender or exchange offer, the maker thereof, together with members of any group (within the meaning of Rule 13d-5(b)(1) under the Exchange Act) of which such maker is a part, and
together with any affiliate or associate of such maker (within the meaning of Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act) and any members of any such group of which any such affiliate or associate is a part, own beneficially (within the
meaning of Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act) more than 50% of the issued and outstanding Class A ordinary shares, the holder of a warrant will be entitled to receive the highest amount of cash, securities or other property to which
such holder would actually have been entitled as a shareholder if such warrant holder had exercised the warrant prior to the expiration of such tender or exchange offer, accepted such offer and all of the Class A ordinary shares held by
such holder had been purchased pursuant to such tender or exchange offer, subject to adjustment (from and after the consummation of such tender or exchange offer) as nearly equivalent as possible to the adjustments provided for in the
warrant agreement. If less than 70% of the consideration receivable by the holders of Class A ordinary shares in such a transaction is payable in the form of Class A ordinary shares in the successor entity that is listed for trading on a
national securities exchange or is quoted in an established over-the-counter market, or is to be so listed for trading or quoted immediately following such

 



 

event, and if the registered holder of the warrant properly exercises the warrant within thirty days following public disclosure of such transaction, the warrant exercise price will be reduced as specified in the warrant agreement based on
the Black-Scholes value (as defined in the warrant agreement) of the warrant.

The warrants are issued in registered form under a warrant agreement between Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as warrant agent, and us. The warrant agreement provides that the terms of the warrants may be amended
without the consent of any holder for the purpose of (i) curing any ambiguity or correct any mistake, including to conform the provisions of the warrant agreement to the description of the terms of the warrants and the warrant
agreement set forth in the IPO prospectus, or defective provision (ii) amending the provisions relating to cash dividends on ordinary shares as contemplated by and in accordance with the warrant agreement or (iii) adding or changing
any provisions with respect to matters or questions arising under the warrant agreement as the parties to the warrant agreement may deem necessary or desirable and that the parties deem to not adversely affect the rights of the
registered holders of the warrants, provided that the approval by the holders of at least 50% of the then-outstanding public warrants is required to make any change that adversely affects the interests of the registered holders. You should
review a copy of the warrant agreement, which is filed as Exhibit 4.4 to this Annual Report for a complete description of the terms and conditions applicable to the warrants.

The warrant holders do not have the rights or privileges of holders of ordinary shares and any voting rights until they exercise their warrants and receive Class A ordinary shares. After the issuance of Class A ordinary shares upon
exercise of the warrants, each holder will be entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters to be voted on by shareholders.

No fractional warrants will be issued upon separation of the units and only whole warrants will trade. If, upon exercise of the warrants, a holder would be entitled to receive a fractional interest in a share, we will, upon exercise, round
down to the nearest whole number the number of Class A ordinary shares to be issued to the warrant holder.

We have agreed that, subject to applicable law, any action, proceeding or claim against us arising out of or relating in any way to the warrant agreement will be brought and enforced in the courts of the State of New York or the United
States District Court for the Southern District of New York, and we irrevocably submit to such jurisdiction, which jurisdiction will be the exclusive forum for any such action, proceeding or claim. This provision applies to claims under
the Securities Act but does not apply to claims under the Exchange Act or any claim for which the federal district courts of the United States of America are the sole and exclusive forum.

Dividends

We have not paid any cash dividends on our ordinary shares to date and do not intend to pay cash dividends prior to the completion of our initial business combination. The payment of cash dividends in the future will be dependent
upon our revenues and earnings, if any, capital requirements and general financial condition subsequent to completion of our initial business combination. The payment of any cash dividends subsequent to our initial business
combination will be within the discretion of our board of directors at such time. Further, if we incur any indebtedness, our ability to declare dividends may be limited by restrictive covenants we may agree to in connection therewith.

Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of Association

Our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association contain provisions designed to provide certain rights and protections relating to the IPO that will apply to us until the completion of our initial business combination.
These provisions (other than amendments relating to provisions governing the election or removal of directors prior to the initial business combination, which require the approval of at least 90% of our ordinary shares attending and
voting in a general meeting) cannot be amended without a special resolution under Cayman Islands law. As a matter of Cayman Islands law, a resolution is deemed to be a special resolution where it has been approved by either (i) the
affirmative vote of at least two-thirds (or any higher threshold specified in a company’s articles of association) of a company’s shareholders entitled to vote and so voting at a general meeting for which notice specifying the intention to
propose the resolution as a special resolution has been given; or (ii) if so authorized by a company’s articles of association, by a unanimous written resolution of all of the company’s shareholders entitled to vote at a general meeting.
Other than as described above, our amended and restated

 



 

memorandum and articles of association provide that special resolutions must be approved either by at least two-thirds of our shareholders entitled to vote and who attend and vote at a general meeting of the company (i.e., the lowest
threshold permissible under Cayman Islands law), or by a unanimous written resolution of all of our shareholders entitled to vote at a general meeting.
 
Our sponsor and its permitted transferees, who collectively beneficially own 20% of our ordinary shares, will participate in any vote to amend our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association and will have the
discretion to vote in any manner they choose; provided that our sponsor and each of our directors and officers have entered into an agreement with us, pursuant to which they have agreed to waive their redemption rights with respect to
their founder shares and public shares in connection with a shareholder vote to approve an amendment to our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association (A) that would modify the substance or timing of our
obligation to provide holders of our Class A ordinary shares the right to have their shares redeemed in connection with our initial business combination or to redeem 100% of our public shares if we do not complete our initial business
combination within 24 months from the IPO or (B) with respect to any other provision relating to the rights of holders of our Class A ordinary shares. Specifically, our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association
provide, among other things, that:

 • If we have not consummated an initial business combination within 24 months from the closing of the IPO or during any Extension Period, we will (i) cease all operations except for the purpose of winding up; (ii) as
promptly as reasonably possible but no more than ten business days thereafter, redeem the public shares, at a per-share price, payable in cash, equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust Account,
including interest earned on the funds held in the Trust Account and not previously released to us to pay our taxes that were paid by us or are payable by us, if any (less up to $100,000 of interest to pay dissolution
expenses) divided by the number of the then-outstanding public shares, which redemption will completely extinguish public shareholders’ rights as shareholders (including the right to receive further liquidation
distributions, if any); and (iii) as promptly as reasonably possible following such redemption, subject to the approval of our remaining shareholders and our board of directors, liquidate and dissolve, subject in the case
of clauses (ii) and (iii) to our obligations under Cayman Islands law to provide for claims of creditors and the requirements of other applicable law;

 • Prior to or in connection with our initial business combination, we may not issue additional securities that would entitle the holders thereof to (i) receive funds from the Trust Account or (ii) vote as a class with our
public shares (a) on our initial business combination or on any other proposal presented to shareholders prior to or in connection with the completion of an initial business combination or (b) to approve an amendment
to our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association to (x) extend the time we have to consummate a business combination beyond 24 months from the closing of the IPO or (y) amend the foregoing
provisions;

 • Although we do not intend to enter into a business combination with a target business that is affiliated with our sponsor, Lazard or our directors or officers, we are not prohibited from doing so. In the event we enter
into such a transaction, we, or a committee of independent and disinterested directors, will obtain an opinion from an independent investment banking firm that is a member of FINRA or an independent accounting
firm that commonly renders valuation opinions that such a business combination is fair to our company from a financial point of view;

 • If a shareholder vote on our initial business combination is not required by applicable law or stock exchange listing requirements and we do not decide to hold a shareholder vote for business or other reasons, we will
offer to redeem our public shares pursuant to Rule 13e-4 and Regulation 14E of the Exchange Act, and will file tender offer documents with the SEC prior to completing our initial business combination which contain
substantially the same financial and other information about our initial business combination and the redemption rights as is required under Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act;

 • So long as our securities are then listed on the Nasdaq, our initial business combination must occur with one or more target businesses that together have an aggregate fair market value of at least 80% of the assets held
in the Trust Account (excluding the amount of deferred underwriting commissions held in trust and

 



 

 taxes payable on the income earned on the Trust Account) at the time of signing a definitive agreement to enter into the initial business combination;

 • If our shareholders approve an amendment to our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association (A) that would modify the substance or timing of our obligation to provide holders of our Class A
ordinary shares the right to have their shares redeemed in connection with our initial business combination or to redeem 100% of our public shares if we do not complete our initial business combination within 24
months from the closing of the IPO or (B) with respect to any other provision relating to the rights of holders of our Class A ordinary shares, we will provide our public shareholders with the opportunity to redeem all
or a portion of their Class A ordinary shares upon such approval at a per-share price, payable in cash, equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust Account, including interest earned on the funds held in
the Trust Account and not previously released to us to pay our taxes, if any, divided by the number of the then-outstanding public shares, subject to the limitations described herein; and

 • We will not effectuate our initial business combination solely with another blank check company or a similar company with nominal operations.

In addition, our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association provide that under no circumstances will we redeem our public shares in an amount that would cause our net tangible assets to be less than $5,000,001.

The Companies Act permits a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands to amend its memorandum and articles of association with the approval of a special resolution which requires the approval of the holders of at least two-thirds
of such company’s issued and outstanding ordinary shares who attend and vote at a general meeting or by way of unanimous written resolution. A company’s articles of association may specify that the approval of a higher majority is
required but, provided the approval of the required majority is obtained, any Cayman Islands exempted company may amend its memorandum and articles of association regardless of whether its memorandum and articles of association
provide otherwise.

Accordingly, although we could amend any of the provisions relating to our structure and business plan which are contained in our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association, we view all of these provisions as
binding obligations to our shareholders and neither we, nor our officers or directors, will take any action to amend or waive any of these provisions unless we provide dissenting public shareholders with the opportunity to redeem their
public shares.

Certain Anti-Takeover Provisions of our Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of Association

Our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association provide that our board of directors will be classified into three classes of directors. As a result, in most circumstances, a person can gain control of our board only by
successfully engaging in a proxy contest at two or more annual general meetings.

Our authorized but unissued ordinary shares and preference shares will be available for future issuances without shareholder approval and could be utilized for a variety of corporate purposes, including future offerings to raise
additional capital, acquisitions and employee benefit plans. The existence of authorized but unissued and unreserved ordinary shares and preference shares could render more difficult or discourage an attempt to obtain control of us by
means of a proxy contest, tender offer, merger or otherwise.

Our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association provide for advance notice procedures with respect to shareholder proposals and the nomination of candidates for election as directors, other than nominations made by
or at the direction of our board of directors or a committee of our board of directors. In order for any matter to be properly brought before a meeting, a shareholder will have to comply with advance notice requirements. Generally, to be
timely, a shareholder notice must be received at our principal executive offices not less than 120 days prior to the date of our proxy statement released to shareholders in connection with the previous year’s annual general meeting or, if
we did not hold an annual general meeting the previous year, or if the date of the current year’s annual general meeting has been changed by more than 30 days from the date of the previous year’s annual

 



 

general meeting, then the deadline shall be set by the board of directors with such deadline being a reasonable time before we begin to print and send our related proxy materials. Our amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association allow the chairman of the meeting at a meeting of the shareholders to adopt rules and regulations for the conduct of meetings which may have the effect of precluding the conduct of certain business at a meeting if the rules
and regulations are not followed. These provisions may also defer, delay or discourage a potential acquirer from conducting a solicitation of proxies to elect the acquirer’s own slate of directors or otherwise attempting to influence or
obtain control of us.

Listing of Securities

Our units are listed on the Nasdaq under the symbol “LGACU”. Once the securities comprising the units begin separate trading, we expect that the Class A ordinary shares and warrants will be listed on the Nasdaq under the symbols
“LGAC” and “LGACW”, respectively. The units will automatically separate into their component parts and will not be traded following the completion of our initial business combination.

 

 



Exhibit 10.8
 

Execution Version
 

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED PROMISSORY NOTE (THIS “NOTE”) AND THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THIS NOTE MAY BE CONVERTED HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF
1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”) OR UNDER THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE. THIS NOTE HAS BEEN ACQUIRED FOR INVESTMENT ONLY AND MAY NOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR
ASSIGNED IN THE ABSENCE OF REGISTRATION OF THE RESALE THEREOF UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL REASONABLY
SATISFACTORY IN FORM, SCOPE AND SUBSTANCE TO THE MAKER THAT SUCH REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED.

AMENDED AND RESTATED WORKING CAPITAL PROMISSORY NOTE

Principal Amount: up to $1,300,000
(as set forth on the Schedule of Borrowings attached hereto as Exhibit A)

Dated as of March 26, 2021
New York, New York

Lazard Growth Acquisition Corp. I, a Cayman Islands exempted company (the “Maker”), promises to pay to the order of LGACo 1 LLC, a Delaware series limited liability company, or its registered assigns or
successors in interest (the “Payee”), or order, the principal sum of up to One Million Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,300,000) (as set forth on the Schedule of Borrowings attached hereto as Exhibit A) in lawful money of the
United States of America, on the terms and conditions described below. All payments on this Note shall be made by check or wire transfer of immediately available funds or as otherwise determined by the Maker to such account as the
Payee may from time to time designate by written notice in accordance with the provisions of this Note. This Note hereby amends and restates in its entirety the working capital promissory note, dated January 25, 2021, issued by the
Maker to the Payee.

1. Principal. The entire unpaid principal balance of this Note shall be payable by the Maker in full on the date (such date, the “Maturity Date”) on which the Maker consummates an initial merger, share exchange,
asset acquisition, share purchase, reorganization or similar business combination with one or more businesses (an “Initial Business Combination”), unless earlier accelerated upon the occurrence of an Event of Default (as defined
herein). The principal balance may be prepaid by the Maker at any time without penalty. Under no circumstances shall any individual, including but not limited to any officer, director, employee or shareholder of the Maker, be obligated
personally for any obligations or liabilities of the Maker hereunder.

2. Conversion at the Option of the Payee.  At any time and from time to time, at the option of the Payee, all or a portion of any unpaid and outstanding principal balance of this Note, subject to this paragraph 2, may
be convertible into one or more redeemable warrants (the “Working Capital Warrants”), with each $1.50 of unpaid and outstanding principal balance of this Note being convertible into one Working Capital Warrant (a “Conversion”).
Each Working Capital Warrant, when and if issued, will entitle the Payee to purchase one Class A ordinary share of the Maker, par value $0.0001 per share (each, an “Ordinary Share”), at an exercise price of $11.50 per Ordinary
Share, subject to adjustment, and will otherwise have the terms set forth in that certain Warrant Agreement, substantially in the form of Exhibit B hereto, entered into by the Maker and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company on
February 12, 2021, the date (the “IPO Closing Date”) of the consummation of the Maker’s initial public offering of the Maker’s units (the “IPO”). The Payee acknowledges and agrees that the Working Capital Warrants, when and if
issued, will be subject to the terms of a letter agreement, substantially in the form of Exhibit C hereto, entered into on the IPO Closing Date in connection with the IPO among the Maker, the Payee and certain other parties thereto. In no
event shall more than 1,333,333 Working Capital Warrants be issued in the aggregate as a result of one or more Conversions.

3. Interest. No interest shall accrue on the unpaid principal balance of this Note.

4. Drawdown Requests. The Maker and the Payee agree that the Maker may request up to One Million Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,300,000) in the aggregate for costs and expenses reasonably related to the
Maker’s working capital needs prior to the consummation of the Initial Business Combination. The principal of this Note may be drawn down from time to time prior to the Maturity Date, upon request from the Maker to the Payee
(each, a “Drawdown Request”). Each Drawdown Request must state the amount to be drawn down, and must not be an amount less than One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) unless agreed to by the Payee in its sole discretion. The Payee
shall fund each Drawdown Request no later than three business days after receipt of a Drawdown Request; provided, however, that the maximum amount of drawdowns outstanding under this Note at any one time may not exceed One
Million Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,300,000). No fees, payments or other amounts shall be due to the Payee in connection with, or as a result of, any Drawdown Request by the Maker.

5. Application of Payments. All payments shall be applied first to payment in full of any costs incurred in the collection of any sum due under this Note, including without limitation reasonable attorney’s fees, then to
the payment in full of any late charges and finally to the reduction of the unpaid principal balance of this Note.

6. Events of Default. The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute an event of default (“Event of Default”):



 
(a) Failure to Make Required Payments. Failure by the Maker to pay the principal amount due pursuant to this Note within five business days of the Maturity Date.

(b) Voluntary Bankruptcy, Etc. The commencement by the Maker of a voluntary case under any applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, rehabilitation or other similar law, or the consent by it
to the appointment of or taking possession by a receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, custodian, sequestrator (or other similar official) of the Maker or for any substantial part of its property, or the making by it of any assignment for the
benefit of creditors, or the failure of the Maker generally to pay its debts as such debts become due, or the taking of corporate action by the Maker in furtherance of any of the foregoing.

(c) Involuntary Bankruptcy, Etc. The entry of a decree or order for relief by a court having jurisdiction in the premises in respect of the Maker in an involuntary case under any applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency or other similar law, or appointing a receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, custodian, sequestrator (or similar official) of the Maker or for any substantial part of its property, or ordering the winding-up or liquidation of its
affairs, and the continuance of any such decree or order unstayed and in effect for a period of 60 consecutive days.

7. Remedies.

(a) Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default specified in Section 6(a) hereof, the Payee may, by written notice to the Maker, declare this Note to be due immediately and payable, whereupon the
unpaid principal amount of this Note, and all other amounts payable hereunder, shall become immediately due and payable without presentment, demand, protest or other notice of any kind, all of which are hereby expressly waived,
anything contained herein or in the documents evidencing the same to the contrary notwithstanding.

(b) Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default specified in Sections 6(b) or 6(c) hereof, the unpaid principal balance of this Note, and all other sums payable with regard to this Note, shall automatically
and immediately become due and payable, in all cases without any action on the part of the Payee.

8. Waivers. The Maker and all endorsers and guarantors of, and sureties for, this Note waive presentment for payment, demand, notice of dishonor, protest, and notice of protest with regard to the Note, all errors, defects
and imperfections in any proceedings instituted by the Payee under the terms of this Note, and all benefits that might accrue to the Maker by virtue of any present or future laws exempting any property, real or personal, or any part of
the proceeds arising from any sale of any such property, from attachment, levy or sale under execution, or providing for any stay of execution, exemption from civil process, or extension of time for payment; and the Maker agrees that
any real estate that may be levied upon pursuant to a judgment obtained by virtue hereof or any writ of execution issued hereon may be sold upon any such writ in whole or in part in any order desired by the Payee.

9. Unconditional Liability. The Maker hereby waives all notices in connection with the delivery, acceptance, performance, default, or enforcement of the payment of this Note, and agrees that its liability shall be
unconditional, without regard to the liability of any other party, and shall not be affected in any manner by any indulgence, extension of time, renewal, waiver or modification granted or consented to by the Payee, and consents to any
and all extensions of time, renewals, waivers, or modifications that may be granted by the Payee with respect to the payment or other provisions of this Note, and agrees that additional makers, endorsers, guarantors, or sureties may
become parties hereto without notice to the Maker or affecting the Maker’s liability hereunder.

10. Notices. All notices, statements or other documents which are required or contemplated by this Note shall be in writing and delivered (i) personally or sent by first class registered or certified mail or overnight
courier service to the address designated in writing, (ii) by facsimile to the number most recently provided to such party or such other address or fax number as may be designated in writing by such party or (iii) by electronic mail, to the
electronic mail address most recently provided to such party or such other electronic mail address as may be designated in writing by such party. Any notice or other communication so transmitted shall be deemed to have been given on
the day of delivery, if delivered personally, on the business day following receipt of written confirmation, if sent by facsimile or electronic transmission, one business day after delivery to an overnight courier service or five days after
mailing if sent by mail.

11. Construction. THIS NOTE SHALL BE CONSTRUED AND ENFORCED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF NEW YORK, WITHOUT REGARD TO CONFLICT OF LAW PROVISIONS THEREOF.

12. Severability. Any provision contained in this Note which is prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without
invalidating the remaining provisions hereof, and any such prohibition or unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not invalidate or render unenforceable such provision in any other jurisdiction.

13. Trust Waiver. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Payee hereby waives any and all right, title, interest or claim of any kind (a “Claim”) in or to any distribution of or from the trust account (the
“Trust Account”) established in which the proceeds of the IPO conducted by the Maker (including the deferred underwriting discounts and commissions) and



 
certain of the proceeds of the sale of the warrants issued in a private placement to occur in connection with the consummation of the IPO were deposited, as described in greater detail in the registration statement and prospectus filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with the IPO, and hereby agrees not to seek recourse, reimbursement, payment or satisfaction for any Claim against the Trust Account for any reason whatsoever; provided,
however, that if the Maker completes an Initial Business Combination, the Maker shall repay the principal balance of this Note, which may be out of the proceeds released to the Maker from the Trust Account.

14. Amendment; Waiver. Any amendment hereto or waiver of any provision hereof may be made with, and only with, the written consent of the Maker and the Payee.

15. Assignment. No assignment or transfer of this Note or any rights or obligations hereunder may be made by any party hereto (by operation of law or otherwise) without the prior written consent of the other party
hereto and any attempted assignment without the required consent shall be void.

 

 

 

 

[Signature page follows]

 



 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Maker, intending to be legally bound hereby, has caused this Note to be duly executed by the undersigned as of the day and year first above written.

 

 
 LAZARD GROWTH ACQUISITION CORP. I
 a Cayman Islands exempted company
  
  
  
  
  
 By: /s/ Eyal Ofir
  Name: Eyal Ofir
  Title: Chief Executive Officer

 

 
 LGACO 1 LLC

 
a Delaware series limited liability company
by Lazard Group LLC as its Sole Manager

  
  
  
  
  
 By: /s/ Evan L. Russo
  Name:  Evan L. Russo
  Title: Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Eyal Ofir, certify that:
 
 (1) I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Lazard Growth Acquisition Corp. I;
 
 (2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 
 (3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 
 (4) The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and have:
 
 a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,

including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 
 b. (Paragraph omitted pursuant to SEC Release Nos. 33-8238/34-47986 and 33-8392/34-49313);
 
 c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the

end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 
 d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably

likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
 
 (5) The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s independent registered public accounting firm and the

audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 
 a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,

process, summarize and report financial information; and
 
 b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.
 
Date: March 31, 2021 By: /s/ Eyal Ofir
  Eyal Ofir
  Chief Executive Officer
 
 

 



EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

 
I, Mary Ann Deignan, certify that:
 
 (1)  I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Lazard Growth Acquisition Corp. I;
 
 (2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 
 (3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 
 (4) The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and have:
 
 a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,

including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 
 b. (Paragraph omitted pursuant to SEC Release Nos. 33-8238/34-47986 and 33-8392/34-49313);
 
 c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the

end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 
 d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably

likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
 
 (5) The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s independent registered public accounting firm and the

audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 
 a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,

process, summarize and report financial information; and
 
 b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.
 
Date: March 31, 2021 By: /s/ Mary Ann Deignan
  Mary Ann Deignan
  Chief Financial Officer
 

 



EXHIBIT 32.
Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
 
 

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Lazard Growth Acquisition Corp. I (the “Company”) for the year ended December 31, 2020, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), each of the undersigned officers of the Company, does hereby certify, to the best of such officer’s knowledge and belief, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
 
 
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

 
 

Date: March 31, 2021
 
 
 
/s/ Eyal Ofir
Eyal Ofir
Chief Executive Officer
 
 
 

/s/ Mary Ann Deignan
Mary Ann Deignan
Chief Financial Officer
 

 


